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1. AcroltYms & GlossarY of Terms

lnsert trcronltnrs ancl glo.t,strr.1' of l'<'rm'r uted in lhc ft!l)orl a'!'

PSASB Public Sector Accotrrrting Starrclarcls Boarcl

FY Financial Year

OSHA Occupational Safety & I{eath Act

Ficluciary Managenrcnt l(ey ntauagcurent pet'sorlnel who have financial responsibility in the entity

I
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Informntion and Managemcnt
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Govertrment of I(akamega and is dorniciled in Kenya

ztl ctivitics

:r Municipality

unicipality in tlre country through provision ofquality services to general public and its

cga N'l u u iuip rt lit.v

services that is altbrclable, accessible, acceptable, sustainable, eft'ective and equitably

ransparently

p I activities of l(al<amega municipality arc ns follorvs:

of I{evenue
i Rates Clearauce Certiticate
f Single Business Pern'rits

nspection
ndation for approval of Building Plans

is ou of In lrastrttctttre Developnretlt atld Maintenance

ce f Rcgistration Celtiticirte to ()rotrps' CBOs

t iorr aucl coorcl i rtitt io tt o l' 1;ul:l ic llllt ic i llal ttltr

F lmulation ancl Covetuattcc

core values for l(nkamcga nrunicipnlity are: seamless service, ,accountability and

,timeliness ,efficiency ,goal orientecl, Integrity aud cttstomer focus
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K{<anrega Municipality is establishecl by ancl clerives its ziutholity trud accottntability IL'om Urban Aretrs

ur,h a,,,., Act No. l3 of 201 I and Cities and Mtrnicipal Charter dated 16th August 2019 The Municipality
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{ounty Gavettnrn! of liakutnegu
Kukamega MuniciPaiitY
Annual R.eport aad Finoftcisl Statenaerets r the ye

c) I(ey Managcrncnt

i. I{.8 Thc (iovcrrror

a.r ended .Iune 30,2023
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FI.B.I{ON. FCPA FERI''IANDBS BARASA OGW'

CovnnNoR I(AI(AMBGA couNTY

H.E. Hon. FCPA L-er.nandes Barasa, was elected iu ofl'tce in2022 as the Second Govetuor of l(akarnega

County following promulgation of the Constitution of Kenya' 2010
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a:tti F fuancial Stttemen's Jor tht i ended June 3ii' 2A23

ber of the orange Democratic Moverrrent lvhich is the secorrd largest pat'ty.

,,virs bor.rr arrd raised in l(habondi village, Munrias East constituelrcy in Kakamega county

Primary education,Hon Barasa attendcd Naitiri high schoot where he sat for his national

lle later ltroceeclecl to I(cnyatta University where he purstted a Bachelor of Comtnerce'

ness Adtrin istration, and Ph.D. in Accotrnting and Fitrance degrees

sii is rrran.iccl ttr Pr.o1'. Jauct Kusilly tJulusir. arrtl togcthcr thcy have flor.rr chilclrelr

A

c

M
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H
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pno$rssloNAL suMMARY
I-le sefvcd as a clrairmzru of the plestigiotts Iustitute of Celtified I'trblic Accountants of l(enya'

Hc alfo woLkccl as tlrc nrauagiug director and chief cxcctltive officer at I(enya Electricity Transmission

l

Comfl any Limiteci (I(ETRACO).



{launt! Govern&eat of l{ckamega
hakamega Municipality

ear enCee! June 30' 202i
Annu.a! tri. ot't find Financial Sta.t enaants lbr the

tt I{.E The DePtrtY Goverttor'

r./tl;.i -.'
.*f6i-''' ,,f'6'r, h:...F

H.E. AYUB SAVULA ANGATIA
D[,PUT' GOVERNOR I(AI(AMEGA COUNTY

PEIISONAL INFORMATION

tlorr.savulaAytlbAngatiawasbot.lronMarclr3rd'1975.r\ytrbAngatiahastrvowil,esMelodyGatwiri

Ringera and Hellen Jepkor l(emboi and together they have childLen'

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY
In lggg till 2oo7 Ay"b A";;; got a job at starldard Group Lirnited as an acti,g regional news editor' In

2007, he joinecl cross continental Ventttre l-iruited ancl Johunewton cotntrruuicatiotl as a Managing

Director and Director respectively. Since 2008 till nor,r'. Anrb Angatia wotks in Expt'ess Media Group as a

Managing Director. In March20 I 3, he joined thc Kcnya Natiorral Assenrbly as a Menrbcr of Par'tiament

VI



Co G fitnt oj' KakEt?.ega

fi4 iticipai!i.1,
atial Sttzlemants iiir tirt Ytlar etidcd ,/u*e 30, )$23il itnd {riit,t

for nstituerrcy.I{ervaselectedasDeputycovernorforl(akarnegaCountyitt2022General

o
tia attended Manyonyi Primary School for his I(enya Certificate of Prirnary

In

Ed

tl'a

A

A

C

n 1990, AYub Angatia

tligtr School tbr his Ken

went to Lumakanda Boys Secondary School before

ya Celtificate of Seconclary Education (KCSE)' ln 200 l'

oinccl l(enya Institutc of Mass cotrrmttnication to ptrrsuc a diplorna itr Jounralisnr' In 2010'

joirrectMoiUrriversitytotakeaBzrclrelorofscietrceinPubticRelatiorrsaud

n and sti. at the sarne.niversity, he dicr the Master of philosophy in communication

CI alitl,Board

Positiort Flantc

Ms. Faith Kharnali Citira
ief oflicer MinistrY of Lands Ur

d physical planrring

tran atcas

a

CS Daniel Okalo Musita
runicipal ity [t4 attager

Mr sylvance Obondo
ance Departurct'tt

u

Hsc, I'lanziva mcshack kij Lrba
Chairu'ratr of the Board

Dr.Mariarn BarasaCounty Executive Cotrrtnittee

responsible for Cities and Urbau areas

Meruber

N,Is. Faith l(harlali Gitira
3

Fcpa wycliffc kibisrr rnajcngo
4

Chief officer -Lancls

Boalcl Mcurbcr

Ms. Artrina uralcoklra
5 Board Mcrnber

Mr-s Catherine warrdabwa
6 Board Mernber

Rajinder "PaPe" Sembi,
7 Board Mernber

8

()

BoLrrcl Mer-nbcr'

[-]ualcl it4 cr t rb,:r [)r'. C'rthelinr: rlrttltonja aura h

Municiprl i tY M arrager-ex-cr fficio

Mr.TinrothY Mudotle

Mr Daniel Okalo Musita

Member

vtt

iin t ud!

Elections.
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C'ounty Governincnl o! Kaliamelia
liako.*iega lttl:i e
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d) FiduciaryManagement

The key ntanageplent personnsl who hcld office cluring the tlnancial year ended 30'r'June 2023 and

wlio had direct fiduciary responsibility were

Ref

I

Position

M u n icipa lity ruanagcr

l.,l a rr c

CS Daniel Okalo Musita

2 Finance depaltnrent Mr Sylvance Obondo

J Engineering Stanley Adeya

4 Public health Rotrclt Ongayi

5 Aclmin istlation Ccolgina ShrrktrnYi

6 Environrncnl. Jacob Shanrala

'7 Survey Caleb ShiLrndtt

8 Social serviccs Panrela Ongalo

VIII
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An It a tt d Fin azcittl Statemen ls or lhe r ended June 30' 2023

iary Oversight Arrnngcments
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da Building/Flousc/Plaza

mega, KENYA

lrta cts

honc
kakarregaurutr ic ipa lity@kakamega. go lce

0s6-030-222

ite wwlv. kakarttega. go.ke
277 -50102

stcrctl O l'ti ccs

Box 277-50102

nl<c rs

mmelcia[ Banlts
I(CB Croup- Po Box I52 (50t00) l(akantega

Co-operative Banl<-PO Box 595 (50100) Kakanrega

ndcpendcnt Auditor

rud

ffi

nn

,o.P

itor Ccuclal

ce of The Auditor Cenelal

iversary Towet's, UniversitY WaY

Box 30084

cPo 00r00

e)

)N

Monitoling and reviewing rts

and govemance processes that have

been established

k, control
it and risk Management committeeu

I

Legislation
Oversight
Re l'esentatloll

2

Oversiglrt arrd advisorY

AccountabilitY
Express opinion ot'r Books of account

Ofier quality assulance on fiscal and

mattcrsmonetalrnittees of ttre senatco

J

eb

o
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tt
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P

N irobi, I(enya
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County Assembly Cotnur ittees
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Annual llepori und Fi
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Couuty Lcgal Adviscr

Cotrnty AttolueY

County Govcrtrtncnt of Kakarrlcga

P.O Box 36-50100

l(akan'rega, I(enya

x

j) Principal Lcgal Adviser

The Attorney General

State Law Oftice

I{araurbec Avenue

P.O. Box 401 l2

City Square 00200

Nairobi, l(enYa
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Gavernms n! of Kak:t a ega

egt !4rc;iltip*li!.t
\,it rr'(rit.lci! ,'!tt*t 7l, )i)7-3i Rc1

3. I(alcnmcga Municipality Borrcl

nrcmbcr ol'the Mumias Town Managenrent Committee from

iO f S-zO f q. FIe was trlso the Principal ofChavakali I{igh School

between 2002 and 2006 and Kinrilili High school between 1990

and 2001.Mr. L'lanziva l'rolds a Master's of Science degree in

Organizational Developtlent fi'orn University of Nairobi'

Balhelor of Education degree from SC McGilt University -
Montreal, Canada and a Diplonra fronr the Kenya Scierlce

Teaclrers'College.
I'lc u,as honoreciwith l{eacl of State Corurlendation, Civitian

Division

Mrs Cathcrinc Wandabrva
chtirpcrsonWas nonrinated b

Rcsidcnts Association (GRA).
Educatiotr degrec from MMU
Eclucatiorr frorn I(errYa Teacl

Agliculture from Egcrton Univetsity and Certificate in

M"onitoring ancl Evaluation frour Kenya Institute of
Managemellt.
Ms. audabwa is cumently tlre county election Manager,Nandi

County.

tlre Board ctrairPerson atrd

I Lubao. I-le has served as a
IVI r. L'lanziva is c

Director of St. Anne
r,rrren tly
's Schoo

is cunenty the Vicc
y the t(akamega CountY

Shc liolds a Bachclors of
ST, Diploma in Technical

rers Collegc, DiPloma in

Ms Faith I(hanrlli Citira
Ongoing lnasters in Healtll systems managelrlent with

l(euya Methodist UniversitY
I'lotcls a bachelor's dcgree in health systenrs lllallagernetlt

li onr l(cnya Methodist University
l)iplorna in Ntrrsing fi'otrl trlut<ut'lrtl school of Ntrlsing

Special iLy irr l{cproductive Health

Training-in {inancial rnanagenlent from l(euya school of

Covernmeut
Training in leadership management and Governance for

Health iystems strengthening frorn Anrref Health Africa

A member of I(enya National Union of Nurses, Natiotlal

Nurses association of I(enya ,I(enya plogressive Nllrses

and Midwives Associtttion of l(en a

XI

[\'l rs Cn tlrcriuc Wartdabu'lt

.ii--. ,- ,,

=li,F&:#

association
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Kakamego Mwnicipality
Annual R rt uttd Financial Slatemenls Jbr the cat ended,trtore 3 0, 2023

M 2l IN il lio l(h it I'Io 111 !'l a cd t)v hc S oc al o
s ul n

h t'l c o c 's S c l'lg d v7 ou
k() i:\ a C c l\4 a l'l a C lll c l] a I1 c

irnrl I 
jittatrt:c 

) <lcgrcc I trrrtt N4 l' l( cnya ( lrrivcrsity'

A,',.,inu ltrs *nik.d n. a Voluntccr t'acilitator at Altcrrativc

Vi;i;;.; Ploject Kenya, Volunteer at Thika Young Association

ona tU"n,t .t of the Aisociation of Youth Business Owners'

N{s. Anrina rnaltol<hn
(l il l) S c l'lh a bo II l1 Kak Il cgil l1 96 a rtl bcgan

c
U KK k ll c il P a ry (l lr !ll c t(-) u dv

B Sc
U v rvhc lc hc s LI d cd L t1 o l'l t'l'tc n a S c cc

(lJ ons).
Panc Scmbi is a Busincssnran having bcen in the Motor tradc alld

Sr*rlif f itrg irArttly. He is now a Director in l{oldcn Investlnents Lttl'

i"]r"'i.'iu" irr"ppin[ rnall Knorvrr as l-tolclen Mall opposite BLrkhungu

Sradium.
ln addition to (his, Pape Scnrbi is acLivc irr llurncrous cornllrurlrty

orgr,;iru,i",,t. including tltc ['iotrs Ciltrb ol'Kal<antcga' rvhcre lrc has

l,,in,u",, Distlict Cjovcrrrol in cltitt'gr': ol J cot'ttttrics' thc 'Sikh Union

iiut, tci.unru rl4tcre hc is tlrc Vicc (lhairnlatr' f:qtlator lvlotor Sports

Ciuir, trrri,'.l.l,,,.l oI thc Africirn Canilrlian Continuing Edtrcation

in"ia,r. Unuta Mernber artcl Cltait tuarl ot' the fittance comnriltee at

i"rr.iii'rr" I{ospital, Patrou of thc Westcrn Bulls Rugby Club arrd a

i",.""t Oi*""t'at (enya Rtrgby Union He is currently tlre Golf

i""iri,,'.i rtt.nrcga bolf Ctuu and has bccn appointcd to the

K aka,n"gn Ir4rrrricipality Roarcl 2022-2024

i;r,," i";"ur i. nlnrri"il to t,ion Atlarprcct Shc holds a. lr4 Sc irr

gio.l';,r,it,rv antl tutts a clinical dragnostic laboratory in I(akamcga'

;i;; rr;;; i;" sons who are both Lions, llarpal and Jaspal who both

work in Ccntml Londolt.

Mr. Rnjinder singh scnrbi ("papc")

E

C

t1r.lcd it ol'to oIcf)oOh d llcaII o t'ec dec e l'ts ilo Cil ch IC
nil d aud ac tloEB o ot')ath sycccS c l)

chan c lll1.lc SaMdllfcu a ccR soc No at'lC
an (lntlEd ac ol1 l'lc anIOctl c Enl1c cc o SIM aitoh da so

ICul1 o eCSa eSlrc o ozln Pcl-t a otl gvEio l'ts vAS eM
crhchc o o1-f c l') cco Sc ISUc tl vMdl1ASa M

l1a dfcc o otl c dca ch ll'svcU
il c ll0hrl cClv Sd lPsctl sTC oc ilh sS vPl(l) illlc ccacl

os t1S lrnocildcC l'lc ccna Sdn ,l cchao ll'l1 el1'lct) ap
M ivtc als1) llit cocvc

Dr. Catherinc muhon a aurah
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Gorern ne nt af Pt akc m ege

egd MRtllcipalit.'/
/* tzie ol't arrd Fintn<'irti Slttlemeittt fbr thr: .yeut'entletl .liztta iA, 2023.Re

l:'(l l' r\ \\' vc li li' l( ibisu i\l rtj cn go \\'ils rlornl ltirtcd by Kenya

Fcpn yclilTc kibisu majcngo

( hlurrbct .',l c..,tt'ttttctcc lncl Inclustry Kakanrcga Chapter' Hc holds

Masters in Business Adrrinistration li'orn Dcakin Univcrsity'

Australia and a Bachelor ofconrnrerce degree in Accountiug from

Nairobi University. Mr Kibistr is also a Certified Public

Accountant.
He is thc founder and partner, Wycliffe Majengo & associates CPA

ancl has also worked oi Tax Dircctor, Tax Wotld Africa Linrited'

Mr Mtrjerrgo is ttlso Merrlber of the lollolving proffessional 
.

botlics:-Cliancrcd GIobal lnBllagcltlcllt Accountants, Associatc

(lhaltcred Managcutent Accountallts and Certified Public

Accountants, KcnYa

of the I nstitute of Certified Secl'etalies of Kenya

(ICSK).Currently Serrres as the Murlicipality Manager for

Kakamega. Musita has setvcd as Ag. Director Kakantega

County Youth Service and Wotnen Eurpowet'ment

Progliim (CYSWEP), Ag. Dilector of Public Participation,

Deputy Dilectol of Adrninistration in the department of
Ecluctition Scierrce and Technology and he has also served

as a Sub-Cotttrty administrator in Kl-rwisero ar-rcl Lit<uyani

Sub-Cotrrrties. I'le holds a rnaster's degree(MBA) in

Strategic Mattagctlent fl'on'r Jonro Kcnyatta Univelsity of

Agriculture ancl Technology(JI(UAT), a Bachelor ol'

Ec'lucation(B.Ecl.) deglee fronr Moi University, Diplorna in

Eclucational Managenteut frotlr Kenya Education

Manageurent lnstitute (IGMI) and a Diploma iu Human

Rcsolirce Mauagenrent fionr The Kenya Institute of

Mauagement (I{M). Musita has taught at Jomo Kenyatta

University of agriculture arrd'l'ecl.rrrology Kakanrega

Canrpus and he taught for over twellty-threc years in

valious Secoudary scltools includir-rg Kakarnega I{igh

Daniet Mtrsita is a CcLtitiecl Secretary (CS) and a tnember

School rvhcrc he tau

't echnology (JKUAT) ancl is currcntly punuing a Master degree

in Enviroimental Planning Marlagetnetlt at Kenyatta University'

l-le has workecl as a Lecturer at Nairobi lnstitute of -Iechnology

aud Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture and Te chnology
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ce Ma Ittlal( nlka111 cen to vaS o palldu mo'I om MIt\ r )'
oft'toss c oaActc u aIcSP EA2l dc bn v fofrl occd rccR S csHaK l.)c cv
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Mr.Sylvancc Obondo.

Mr.Sylvance Obondo is tlre cttrtett t tlead oi Finance for

I(akamega Municipality,l{as served fol More tha 30

Years irr diffcrent public sector settings'

I-lolcls BBA fronr Westnriuster University 'Certified

pul,l ic Accrlttlrtalll.(-cl (i llcllc i tl procttrcnrerrt ancl

rc\retltlc collcct ion.
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I ihe .Yeav exdcd lunc 30, 202iIi rl a.nt! Finuncial Slatements Jb

I(alcarncga Municipality Board Chairpersott's Report5

I(akar

and C

ga Municipality is established by ancl clerivcs its autholity aud accortntability from Urban Areas

ies Act No l3 of 20l l and Cities and Mgnicipal Charter clated 16'l'August 2019 The Municipality

r thc Courrty Covcruureut of Kal<trnlcga arrcl is domicilecl in Kenya' Kakamega Municipality

is to provicle quality ser:vices that is afforclabte, accessible, acceptable, sustainable, effective and

ly distributcd to all transparently'

rs ull

Visis

equit

Srrcc

o

Th

Th
P

es rtuttlc

I(aka ega nrtulicillalitl'ltas rlacle se'vclal stritlcs ofsttccesses itlllonq thelll;

harrced solid waste lnanagcmcnt by lltrrchasing a ret'r.rse track and cotrstt'ttct iort ol a rettrse chamber

o

0

Shirere ancl Rostet'urau,

eautification ancl landscaping of thc towll to attt'act invcstors

he municipatity has coustrttctecl a nlarket at Siclritai certter that catl accommodate approximately

000 tradcrs

onsttucte(l watkvvays to ease tm t'[i c congestion

pgradedandt.ctrovatcdalrus.parktbr.easeofllackirrgofpubtictranspoltvel-ricles

nstructed market stalls at Masingo nrarket to ease on pl'esstlre to other main tlarkets

onstrnctecl to bitr,ruren stanclards roads approxinrately l5knr within rnunicipality

enOvatcd ancl labricatccl slattr{lttcr hottsc to tloclct'tr starrclllr'<l irlcltrClirrg solaI hcatcI systenl'fencing

Th Boartls Pcrforruancc

The Board ol'thc l(akan'rega Mtrnicil;aIity has becn establishecl ancl draws all its porvers ancl perform all

tirn tions vestecl in boarcls ot'nrunicipalities iu accorclartce to tlie Urban Areas atlcl Cities Act' 201 I as

i'un nded 2019, arrd tltc County Gtlvcrrttttctrt Act attd thc MLrnicil:ality By-larvs

Boarcl has teu tuetnbers who ureet orr qualtelly basis'

Muricipality Board has tal(en into consideration the provisions of tlle law retating to appointmont of

Ds and other scctorial reprcselltation on its board'

Th mullicipality boarcl lras cleniar.cirted ancl gazzcttetlrent of Municipality bounclaries

Murricipulity boald iras alst-r prcpatccl utttl alrlllovccl a stlategic plan that Iuns to the year 2027

o

o

0

o

o

rrcl propcr clt'a intrgc, systeri-t

T
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Challenges faced by the Municipality

Kakarnega municipality despite ttre above sited achievements faces the fotlowing challenges;

o Late and c.lelayecl d isbut'setltcnts of ltrntls fronr Clotrnty Treasttry'

e Under-stalling

o Inadequatebudgetary provisions.

o The rnunicipality has rTot yet achieved full autotlotny

o Insufficient develol:rrtctrt partnel's.

changes in the N{unicipality Bonrd during tlrc ycar (in terms of thc board or licy mattagemcnt

tcanr)

During the year the tenn of the Old board expired aud a tlew board rvas appointed complete with new

secretariat.

Future otttlool< of tltc N{rrnicipnlitl' l}orrd

The Municipality boarcl has raft of t.ncasttrcs that has been inclutled in Coutlty lntergr2rted Dcvelopnrent

plan of turning the Municipality into a city status. The fotlowing have becn proposed / implemented;

Upgrading of Kakamega airstrip to au airport

f)e-corrgestionofthetrrbanttadcrpopulatiotlft.otrrtowllccntoftoSiclrirainrarket

Expansiou of the boundaries frotn the curreut

Upglacling ancl expanclirlg existing servet' Iitres

Expand reventte base

o Proposal of ftrlI autonomY.

In vierv of the foregoing, the Murricipality slroutcl ctrdeavottr to create a bigger inrpact otr elltet'prise

developmerrt in ordcr to play its rightful role in the county and/or natiotr's developnrent by rethinking its

Seryice detivery rnodel to reach urore businesses efficientty, effectively and in a sr'rstainable mauner' The

Municipality must also be an attractive pattner in youth and wotnen econotnic empoweflnent to attract

e

o

o

o

o
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all potential sources and win the confideuce and goodwitl of all Kakamega Citizens and

le. The Municipality's capacity to cleliver on this strategy is critical. Its legal, policy,

technologic:al attcl cottrpetctlcc lianrewgrks shall trc adequately strengthened ovel time atld

trtcttt ctlnclttcivc t() itttl'ilul iltrd rctaitt tcclrrtsitc sllills ctlcrltcd'

sustaillable in the long rltu ancl recluce its depenclence oll government ftlnding, the Municipality

and l.estructure its scrvice portfolio, diversify its sources of funding and adopt a business

ts overall operations.

lo , I call upon all stakeholclers to el'tbctivcly play their paft in suppolting the Municipality to

spects of its lDaltclate. lt will reqtrite a lot of declicatiou, sttccess arld hardworkiug on the part

ders to lealise this big dt'eam .
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M unicipality rccorclccl good pt'ogt'css in tnlp lcnreutation of their agcrldas and projects. On

aurega Municipality, I u'otrkl like to thank tl E. The Governor, H.E. The Dcputy Governor

hip ancl sLrppot't they lrave plovidccl cluring the periocl. Further:, nry siucere glatitude goes to

u lllcl palities Iloarcl Merrtbet's and statl for thciL continued et'forts to rcalize the goals as set

FY 20 22/2023.1 extend my gratitude to all othc r stake holders for pulling together and lbr

cl cornuritment, cledication and hard rvotk to ensure service delivery to the people of

Lulty I would also like to thank the County Assembly undel the teadership of tlte Speaker

LI ty Clerk for their co-operation arrd oversight lole as well as clonors who havc continued to

inrplenlenting developrnerlt of nltr n icipalit ies

sttlc
rvith
opn'l

ere appreciatiou goes to all the citizen s ol I(akamega County tbr their coutitluous

e nt tlre Couuty Goverunrent which has coutt' ibuted to efficierrt service delivery and citizen

cl cnt

c, tla ziva N'[ cs h ncl< I(ij uba
ip li Borrrtl Ch airpcrso u
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6. Report Of thc Municipality N{anagcr

BUDGET PBIIFOIIMANCB

The Kakaurega Municipatity had apploved br.rdget of l*h 274,435,621 lor Recurretlt arld Development

Respcctively comp;ising a balance brought fotwald of Ksh I 05,000,000 for (I(USP) I(enya Ulban Sttppott

progmlmne.

Budgct Absorption
The I(alcar-nega Municipality's overall absorption was Kshs lT lMillion for both recurent and

cleveloprrent expenditure respectively tlarrslating to 62Vo. From I(sh 17l Milion the pareut ministry did

spcnt Ksh.59,90(r,785 on Contracted clearring scrvices of I(sh. 49,906,785 and I(sh. 10,000,000 on

rnaiutenaucc expenses of dumpsite, this as donc tlrrough agency lelationship. 'l'his expcrrdittrre did not

pass through thc Municipality"s bank accolr[rt.

Budget allocation and absorptiort

Pie chart

i.I Budget

lll Absorption

On betralf of the Board members (BOM) of the l(akarlega Municipality, I have the honour to forward the

Annual Report and Financial Statenrents for the Financial year cnded 30'l'Jtrrre 2023.

The Boarcl is lully alive to its nrastlatc aucl tlrc lact (hat l<akarttcga Mtrrricipality lraving treen established,

is still young anf reqLrircs utrcquivoctrl srrl)l']ot t nutl guiclaticc to lay a sttorrg l'tltttrclation lot its future and

sustairrability through soun{ policics ancl stratcgics as well as full autononty of its operatiorrs.

iAJi'ilrrlli L,ir -

i,, . -'','-'i, /::.-::: ffi

XVIII

Tlre l(akanrega Municipality finances its operations through funds disbr,rrsed fiotn parent n.rinistry of Lands

and donor fuuded programs lilce Keuya Urban Suppolt Ploglanr (KUSP) and Urban Developnrent Progranr

(uDG).

1
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Antu orl und lriraati,zl Slttlemcnls iin tht .yeui entled luttt 3A, )e23IN

PItY CAI, PROGRBSS BASBD ON OI.JTPU'I-

I(aka ega Mtrnicipality asp ircs to be the bcst Mtrnicipality in the Countt'y through the adoPtion of bcst

sourcl olicies and strategic practices as well as the development and use of key instrutneuts nccessarY for

su ful corporate goveruance in line lvith Urban Areas and Cities Act of 2011 and Article 184 of the

Cons tution of Kenya 2010

Durir the year uttder review, the BoaLcl executecl its ltrrrctions well throrrglr its comutittees namely

Fina c, Adhoc, lcgal and t-ull board wh ich hcld trtcctings cllrartcrlY antl artnttal as rcquired by the law

{)a rz

xali,

The
lead

l'hc
dunr
amo
The

Gr{te ,fiftre lil o.l' Xll-k*reei|tt

eg Murlciyttllt.y,

nrrnittees were vibrant throtlghotr t thc ycar, tbllowed bY t'trll board rrteetirrgs. Under the Board's

hip, the Muuicipality develoP ed a Strategic Plan. The strategic plan will enable the municipality

s itir
ift);'N4.',,,',*.,'

work wards a comtnon goal, while ensuring it to manage and reduce operations risks

The oard couclucted str perv isory/ovet s ight visits to all nerv projects. Arising fi'om tl'rese srlPelvrsory

vtsrts nrajor rcpairs ancl aclcli(iorral rvorlis on thc proiests has trecn cat't iccl ottt

iccts that haVu lrce tt (lolll:| t\] sLlcccsstill u()tlrPlctitru ineltttlc collstltlctl( )t] u lld lllailltellaucc of

sitc, pr"rrchasc ol roltrsc tritcl<' consl rtrcriott ttl brttlrllLrll s(anclard l5knt roatl witlrirr thc nr unicipalitY

other projects that are still ongotng but neariug courPletion

rojects have impacted positively to res idents aucl visitors of Kakamega nrunicipality as the envilous

the

an, accebility is adeqr.ratc and tradcls arc happy bccause of upconring uew tnarket

Ing elal the public is conteuted with the programs that have been undertaken by the Municipality and

al congrirerrce of achicvirrg valtre tbr ntorrey cnablecl'

Thc oard is pleasecl with the operatiottal attcl t'inrnciaI rcsults clclivered by nranager-nellt' Flowevet ' 
beillg

ayo ng Municipatity, I(akamega has faced sevelaI chatlenges, keY amoug them, inadequate funding and

dela d disburserrrent of funds, under-staffing and uot functioning w ith full powers of autononry. The

Boa acknowledges the support it has receive d from LI.E. the Governor and the Couuty Executive

Co ittec tnetnbers in execrtting its rnandate aud functiotrs. We are lrositive that this support will

cont nue itlto sttccessiVe yczll's to enable tltc M unicipality complete the constt'ttctitln and inrpletlentation

ol'p o.lccls

llre Boalcl acknowleclges the support ar-rcl good wolkirrg Lelationship with all Departureuts of County

Ex nty staflf as a whole. Wc also acknorvlcclge the itrrmcnse stlppol't that the

M is receiving frour donors

1
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dlownty Goverawent of Kakamega
Kakamega M unicipality
Annual R art o.itd Financial Stalewents for tbe ar ended June iA, 2023

7 stlrtcmcnt ol'Pcrfornrance Agrtinst P rcdcte rnt irt ctl obicctivcs for thc FY 202212tt23

Section l()4(2)(l)ol'rhcl)ublicliinarrccvlrttrttc:ttrcnl r\ct' 2012 rcqtrircs llrrl al lllc cncl of each linancial year'

the Accourrting Officer for a County Covcrtrtttcttl cntity shall PrePare linancial statcrlents in rcspect of the

entity in fomats to be prescribed by the Accounting standards Board inctuding a statetllent of tl-re county

government entity's perfonnance against predetemiued objectives'

Ttre key develoltrlrent ob.iectives ol tlrc Kal<arrrcga Municipality

Orrtcotrtc.
Target not aclrieved

duc to budget
constraiuts

No Of physical develoPrnent P lans

Plepared (0)
Physical
developtncnt
plans

Aclrievcd l5 acrcs of
lanrl out of tatgctcd

100 actcs

Dcvelopntcnt
lanrI

Target not achieved

due to budget
collstraints

Acrcs of larrrl bought

'% conrplction lcvels (

lbr

0%)

rlcvcloptncttt

Complctc
valuation roll

Target not achicvcd
due to budget
constrirints

A cotulty
Spatial Plan

To efficiently
plan and provide
Iand for
developtnent

Fenced l5 acres of
land out of targeted

100 acres

7o cornPletion lcvels (

A crcs o I cottnl"Y governnrcllt land

0%)

tenced
Fenced CountY
Govel nutent
Land

to in adc uate bud ct

Aclrieved I out of
targcted 2 houses due

No of SurveY EquiPurent Putchas
Survcy
equipnrcnt

bud ct

Achieved l5 out of
targeted 100 acres

clue to il't adequate

Acres of public Laud parce ls

sulveyed
Surveycd
Pubtic lancl

adc uate bud

Digitized 3,000 out of
targetcd 5,000 surveY

records due to in

No of StrrveY recorcls Digitized

bud et

Achieved 5 out of
targeted l0 houses

due to in adequate

No ol houses renovate dRenovated
llouses

Achieved I km out of
targeted 3 km due to

in adequatc budget

I(Ms olNon-Motorized roards

constructed
Constructed
Norr-
Motorizcd
Roads

out of ta ted 5 knr
Achieved 4.45 lanKMs of earth roads tautlac kedTarmacked

earth roads

To provide decent

living hortsing
conditiorr

Larrds, Physical
Planriir-rg, Ulban
Areas and

Housing

XX

Digitizcd
survcy recot cls

To eFficiently
plan and provide
land for
developtnent



Ctt
Ktt
An

ffifrtenl o.l' Kakamega
M u ri ici;;a !! !.7'

/rl I ri it d {: i t t t: tt r-' i$ t Q t t' u trv! !! | :; t)i r 'ttiv,:r!tl<tt!,1t:rte 
i(1, )0Z3

bud
due to in adequatc

ad ruate bud

Achieved 2,000 SMs
out oftargeted I 0,000

SMs due to in

SMs of area landsca ped and

beautified
Land scaped

urban Areas

coVID-19 Pandenric

90% oftarget
achieved due to

delays caused bY the

% Courplction of PeoPlcs

Recrcational Park- Muliro
Corrrpletc
Peoplcs
Recreatiorral
Park- Muliro

100 % conrplete but

not yet functional,
final paynrent not
doue

o/o completion levelsComplete
Kaurbi Somali
Open Air
Malkct

bud

Aohieved 2.13 knr

out of targetecl 5 krr
due to in adeqtrate

KMs of earth roads tartrraokedTartruckecl
Earth roads

Achieved I .6knr out
of targeted 2knr cltte

to in adcquatc budgct

KMs of Non-Motorizctl Walkways

constrtlctc(l
Nou-M otorizetl
Walkwuys
coIstructc(l

To inrprove arrcl

provide cfficicut
and nroderrr urban
services

XXI
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8. CorporatcGovcrnanceStatenrcnt

a. Process of appoirltrnent antl retnoval ol'lloard rnembers

Tlre cunent Boar.cl was courpetitively recluited ancl swot'tt in, in the Financial Y ear 202212023 ' Unless a

petition is brought against the board tnembers, the duly constituted boarcl rvill continue serving until the

terru exprres

t) Roles nnd functions of tlte N{unicipality Board tnenthcrs'

o
o
o

o
o
o

o

o
0

6

o
o

e

Overseeing the affairs of the Municipality '

Exercising executive authority as nray te clelegatecl by ttle Municipal BoaId cotrrmittee'

Developing arlcl adopting policies, plans, str.atcgies atrd progranrnres for tlte efficierrt rurrnirrg of tlre

municipality
Formulating and inrplementiug integrated dcvelopment plarrs'

coutr.olling land use, land subldivisio. for various clevelopnrent pul'poses as uray bc delegated'

Prornoting and undcrtaking in fi'astrtrctura I <levclopnrent alrd serviccs lvvithin tlre Municipality or

Town as nray be clclcgatcd by the Courrty (itlvcrtr ntctrt'

Developing aurl nranaging r.h"n]"r, inclutling site developurent in cotlaboration rvith the relevant

National aud CountY Agencies.

Maintaining a comprehensive database and information system for the municipality or town'

Errforcing the fees, levies and charges as nray tre atlthorizecl by the Cotrnty Goverumetrt fol deliver:y

of sewices.

Ensuring thc provision ol sct viccs to its rosidcrrts'

initiatiug nerv laws or making Lecotuuteuclatiotts lirr issttes to be incltrded in tlte laws'

luple're.ting national poii"i"", a.d policies of the Cou'ty Execntive Co,rmittees as they affect the

Municipality.
Enforcing compliauce with constitutionaI provisions otr cousutner Rights' lair administrative

action, Bill of Rigtrts ancl Valucs arrcl Plinciplcs olPtrblic Scrvicc'

Prepar.irrgthcAntrtralAppr.olltiatiolrBillarrclstlbnrittirtgittotheCotrntyTreasr.rrylbt

consideration and tratlsnrissiotl to the County Assernbly for approval'

coordinating and facilitating citizen participation in the developtnent of policies and plans ancl

delivery of services.

lrtrplernerrtitrg policies for firc and clisastcr rrlanagcrncrlt'

Pronrotitrg a sa['c and lrcaltlry ettvirt)lttttcttl

Pelforrrring such othcr Iurrctions as nray bc dclcgatcd lrolrl tintc to titlc'

o

o

o

@

0
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niciitality
'I ald {incnciat Sti amerirs 0, rhe r ended ,lunc 3A,2023

u tion nnd tritinitlg, Municipulity Board trtetrtbcl's all(l tllcnlber'S perlbrtnirnce,

il always irrtluctctl trlicr cugagt:nrcnt iur(l aru licr.lucrltly trairtctl titr clrlartclly basis

tn cr. of Municipnlity Board nrcctiugs hcld ancl thc attetldance to thosc mcetings by

m ers,

oard was colnpetitively recruited and swol'n in, on Septernb er 2023 hence committees havet

d rrd ready to holcl meetings starting Financial Year 202112024

cc ss ion plan

Directors arc alrvays competittvcly rect'uited ancl legatly constittltcd after theil term has

nce of a scrvice cltat'ter,

C

a

A

s

a

th is a scrrrice char.tcr., mounted at the etltrance of Municipality offices. It is written in Englislr

hi i {or clsc ol'trrltlctstirttilirrrl [r1' 111t N4trniciprrlity r'csitlslrts rrncl visitors

n ict of intcrcs [,

tn ing of evcry Board rreeting utcrnbers arc rcquested to declare if they have any conflict of

on the ageuda at ha6d. No conflict of intelests rvere t'aised during board meetilgs'

d renruncration,

hairnal is cltitlc4 to a uroltlrly honorariunr ancl airtiure allowirnce . Boatd metnbels are paid

auccs of bet,,veen wlrile attcnclirrg [Joarcl lneetilrgs. lndeperrdent Board nrembers are alsoo

d

il

vel allowances. This is clone in line with Sala|ies and Retnuneration Conrmission

th cs and conduct ns rvell ils govcrnance atrdit trndertal<en if nny

On<lrrct as rvetlas qqycl'nattcc arttlit is corrcltrctecl (ttt'ing recltritrllellt ProceSS Of the board

grer publir: tllllccr's cthics act
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9. N'lanagenrent Discrrssion arld r\nalysis

a.OrrtlreoperationalandfinancialperfornranceoftlreMunicipalityduringtheperiod,

The l(akamega Mulicipality finances its operations through dogor fturded Plogl'ams like Kenya Urbal

Support Progranr (I(USP) and Urban Development Progranr (UDG)'Kakarnega Murricipality had approved

budget of Ksh 274,435,621 fbr Recrrrrerrl aucl Dcvelopnreut Resltectively.cornprising a balauce brought

fom,ard of l(sh I 05,000,000 for (KUSP) I(errya Urtan Support PfogIanlme'

I(akarnega Municipality has achieved key projects

highlighted below.

Ongoing Constrttctiott of Sichirai I\'larhct

in the betternreut of sewice detivery to tlte citizens as

Budgct Absorption
The Kakaurega Municipality's overall absorption was l(shs l T lMitlion for both recuiletlt and

clevelopnrent expenditure resiectively translatirrg lo 620/.. Ftorn I(sh l7l Milion the parcnt ministry did

spent I(sh.59,906,7ti5 on corrlractetl clcirttirrll sctr iccs ol- l(slr. '19.406'7S5 ancl Kshl0'000'000 on

rrraitttenance cxl)etlses of tltrr.l,lllsif o. this as tkrnc tltt'rr:lt aucltcy l.c:la(ttrrtsltip This cxllcrrditurc clicl uot pass

through the Murrioipality"s banl< accollllt'

b. Entity's l<ey projccts or investments clccision irnplcnrcnted or on going'
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c. Municipality's cornplialrcc rvith statutory rcquiretnents

The Municipality has cornplied with the require<l statutory Iaws and mles that govern it.

I(akarnega Municipality conrplics with rules, orders, r'cgulations, directions, lorrn, tariff of costs or fccs'

letters patent, colntni;siot1, 
'warrant, ploclalnatiorl, by-taw, resolutioll, guideline or otl'ler statutory

instrument issued, made oi establishei in the execution of a power couferred by or tttlder an Act of
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risl<s lacing thc Mtrnicipality, nraterial arrcars in statutory and other linancial

o ligntio ns

risk allbctirrg l(al<atncgit
lrts li'om tlte Tleasttry as it's

in leceiving of the ttrntls slo

tvltrnicipality is tlclay antl latc tlisbtrrscnrcnt itr cxchcqttcr

the Main sorrrLrc of lirncling t<'r the Murricipality

wed down Project irnp lernentation.

I
e

la S

A ly other i[forrnation considercd rclevallt to the uscrs of thc linancial statemcnts'

e Municipality is in oper-atiou trrd is still picking up gradtrally to I'each its potcntial
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10. EnvironmentalAndSustainabilityReporting

l. Sustainability strategy and profilc

Kakarnega Muuicipality is established by ancl clelives its authority and accouutability fro[r Ut'bau Areas

andCitiesActNo. I3of20IIantlCiticsarrrl MurricipaI Chartcrrlatcrl I(rrt'Atrgtrst2019TlreMtrnicipality

is tttrder tlre County Cttvertttltettt ol' ltakirrrtcga attrl is tl'tltictlctl irr l'icrrya'-fhe Municipality strives to

provide quality services that is affordable, accessible, acceptable, sustainable' effective ancl eqtritably

distributed to all transparently.

Thc principal activities of l(al<arnega Inunicipnlity are as follorvs:

. Collection ol Rcvcrtttc

. Issuattce ol'lLates Clearance Certificate

. Issuance of Singte Business Permits

. Building lnspection

. Recomtnendation for approval of Building PIans

. Supelvision of Infi'astruiture Developtnent and Maintenance

. lssr.rance of Registration Certificate to Croups' CBOs

. Organization aird coolclinalion olptrblic participatiorr

. Poticy [:ortnulatiolr atld Govctttatrcc

.2. Environmerrtal pcrforln atrcc

Tttis is the rnothel law of all environuental aspects in the Cor'rntry' !'rorn it'. there are regulations that have

been developed including il"if"rrat Regulations, Envilonmental Regulations (EIA/EA)' Water Quality

Regulations, Controlled sr,t .iun".., 
'Bio,lirersity Regulatiorrs, Air .Quality 

Regulations, Waste

Managerllent Regulatious *JNoir" IicgLrlations. Thcsc icgulatiotls t'egttlate thc variotts cuvironntental

liiJ::i tarks of having a cor.rnty Enviroument Action Plan clevelopecl which.should be aclopted by the

County Assembly. The pulpose of envirotr urerrtal action plans ii to. co-ot'dirrate aud ltanrrotrize the

environrnental poticies, pf*l p-g*rrtncs an<l decisions ofihe national aud couuty governments' as the

case may be, in order to-
i. miniu.rize ttre duplication of procedules aucl functiotls; ancl promote consistency in the

exercise of f'urrctions that nray affect the envit'ounretrt;

ii. secure the protection of the environrnent across the cottntry; and

iii.Pleventutrrcasonableactiorrsbyanypefsoll,statcot.ganorpublicMunicipalityinrespect
of the environtnetlt that are prejucliciai to the eco.otnic or health itltetests of other couuties

or thc countly.

In section 147A, EMCA gives counties the powet's to trrake legislatiorr itt respect of alI sucl'r nlatters as are

necessary or desirable til; .;; ,"q,,ir"a or.perrnitted uucler the c.ustitution a'd EMCA.

. National Bnvironmcut Policy, 2013

xxx
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This pblicy touches or1 various aspects including:

- Public participntion

A cOol'clinatecl ancl 1:a1t ic'i1:atory up1:trlac5 tt) cllvirolllllclltal protec:tion ancl.ura.uagemeut rvill be enhancecl

tO en,.tre that thc tclc\/irIlt g,ovu,rtllellt itu,cncl(s, cullnty gOVcf n.l'llcl'ltS'. plivate scctor' civil SOCiety and

cornrtuuities are i.volvcrl i,ipta,,ing, irnplcrttcntation artd clecisiolr rnal<ing proccsscs'

- Climntc Chnnge

Strengtheu capacity for national and county level- institutions to suppolt national clirlate resilience' low

caibon development thr.ougliirr"g...,f 
"g 

at,rate cha,ge iuto ir.plerneutation stt'ategies'

- Environtnental Nlonitoringand 2lssessnlcllt

Ensure periodic l'eportilrg otl county ancl national stltus of euvirollmellt'

- lnstittrtionalArrnngcnlcnt

Streanrlinc artd str.engthell tlie capacity of euvirottt.uental institr'rtions at the national aud cotuty levels so as

to make them mote effcctive and patticipatory'
'l'lrc policy also rcquires itrnt 

"n, 
iron,r',etrta I cot',ccnrs alc integratccl in 

. 
all policy' planning and

clevelOprnent processcs, thlougll stlcugtherrirrg the cap'.lcity of envilonmeutal irrstitutions at the cotlllty

level3 so as to lnake the,r mori eflective i, etrsuritrg co*rpliauce ancl culorcet,etlt'

. Corrnty Iiuvirtinmcntal N'[anllgcureut r\ct, 2019

It tras a Duurber provisions relatiug to lrir. polh"rtion, noise pollution, .pubIic 
nr-risances attd wztste

managenrent. These are t."y nrp".t, tilat epvit'onnrentaI Perfol'll rultlce shotrld lool< at'

. Draft Corrnty Clirnate Chtrnge Policy, 2020

Once enacted, tlris policy will bc key in nronitoring, cvalttatiug and lcportirrg clinrato charrge adaption arrd

r.nitigation strategies.
The County's succcsscs inclucle clevelopt'neut of a uumbel of legislation to guide environtnental

perfor.rnonce such as Envi|onnreutal Managctnetrt Act,2019 and CoJnty Water Act 2019' Through the

Environmental Managernent Act, 20 19, the Couuty has bcen able to resolvc a nttuber of colnplaitlts

Iansing ti'or.11 uoiSe pollutiOn, solicl waste polltrtion, ancl waste water nlatlagienlcllt just to nrentiou a few'

Othor. clraft legislation til il c'ucial iricltrclc, Cotrnty NtrturaI I{csotrrccs Matrttgeuretrt Bill' Clirrtate

Change Bill and Clinratc Charrgc [)olicy'
Sorne of thc shortcomings incltrtle:

- Inadcquate awal'olless ol'the ptrblic orl the significance of complying with euvirotrtnental and

social safegualcls i u i urpleutent i ng clevel otrl rnent proj ects'

. Extra costs gct incr,rrecl for staltctl ancl delayccl pro.iects and resolving issues that cottld have beeu

preventedrvlrerlCotttityprtljcctsconrplyu,ithsocialanclenvirontlrentalsafegtrards.

Thgre iS a rcviScd tll.ati Nirriorlal Strstairrllrlu \\"lr'stc M ltr tltgr:rtlctrt l)Ulicy u'hich is il rYilstc mtrungetnent

pollcy for the country.'l'hc national policy:

- airls at tr.ansitioning the waste scctor iu evcl'y cotlnty away from low collection rates' illegal

dgprpilg ancl u.coritrolled clumpsites to affordable waste collection' recycliug and cornposting'

alld rninirnize waste fractious that are finally disposed to a well-engiueered and regulated lanclfilt'

-stlpportstlrecreatiotloftheplarrning,ilnance,teclrnicalandgovertrancecapacitiestlratcounty
govc.r.uc.ts nccd to el.l.cctivcly clclivcr on tlicir nrariclatc ttncler tltc Corrstittrticln of l(enya 2010'

XXXt
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The Colnty Govet'nmetlt of Kakalrcga is gtriclecl tly the ftrllou'i1g policies ou hutttan capital managenrent;
Errrployse x,clfhrc

Constitutiorr of KenYa (2010).

County Htttnan Ilesource Policy

Couuty Goveruurerlt Act (2012)

During recruitntent, the Cotrnty cllsurc that slakcho lclc[s/rclevallt depaltnlents arc ilrvolved lry providing

their staff neecls gr.ricled by t1'ciL staf[ estab lis5 rrrcntkrrgan ization. sirtrcttr re TSese stafl',eeds fro,r all

depar.tprents are consoliclat",i'ir, i;rirfi. servicc^atrcl Ailrninistratiorr cleparttletrt ancl forwarded as the

County stafl trecds to thc County Public Scrvicc Roarcl (CPSB) fol recrttitnrcnt The board enstlres that it

sticks not only to the gentier rule clur:ing hiling pro""r, but atso considers regional balance as required by

law.

Lt orcler to irnprove the staff skills, matlage careers, aplllaisal ancl rewat'cl. systeurs' the County eusured that

atl ttre staff i. the county niipAi'fo,',rr-ancl all clellar'trttents sign anntral ,etto'n1zrllce corltracts The best

pertbr.ming dcparrnrcnt ,r;i;;.;;;;;;-i;; ilh .olory as n'rotivation arrcl this is donc annuallv The

Co.rrty also e's1''es cotttitl.crtrs atl<l systcrrtatit' "1'gr"'li"g 
ttl' t:ttrttll' stllll sliills th'otrglr t.ainirlg ancl

capacity builcling lrased on iclentificd gaps'

Considering the policy on satbty and con1pliance with Occupationat Safety ancl l-leatth Act 2007 (OSHA)'

tlre County ensured tfrat afi oiiic"s-huu" b""n installed rvittr fire extinguiihers' have fire assernbly points'

have inclicative clirections to all ofliccs arrtl aclherc ,o wotrt Injury Bcnefits Act (wlBA) by conrpensating

employees rvho get injured while on duty

4. N{arlcct placc Prncticcs

a) Ilcsponsible Strpply cltnin ntrtl supplicr rclirtitltts-

Using appropriate procrtremellt lnethods that etrsure equity and trallsparency'

- use of standarcl tender documents as guicled by public Procurement Regulatory Autholity'

-Supplierdeveloprrrerrtplogramsensitizatiorrarrdtrairringforspecialgl.oups.

-Dettriefing of unsuccesslirl [riclclers to cttlrattce cn tril'tcl ilivcncss and tratrsparctrcy'

-Reportingofcrrtrtractsarr,at.rlstotclt:vatrlatrtlrrlritit:slltrrluctrt:rallluhlir:

- Procurement based on apploved buclget and proctrtcnleut platl'

I

ii
iii

XXXII

to be the lead actors in delive|ing sr'rstairratrle waste l'llallagenretrt set'vices' by provicling an

enabling poticy a'd .-.gurotory e,.,rlro,.,,,.,rt to facilitate tlie coulties to elfectively deliver waste

lrallagenlent scrvices in.triing, facilitating intcr-county cooperation unde[ thc rnetropolis

approacl.r, financial in".n,ir.r, ,Jr.arch, Sonre of the el'tbrts to retlucc environnlcntAl impact of

tlre county's Prod ucts incltrde:

Pr.ovisiou of a durnpsite to dunrp the solicl wtrste cnlelgillg flom the nrr'rnicipal area of the coutlty'

The dunrpsite is well rrrai.tairrcd to cnsurc theLc ii a cotrducivc livi'g etrvironrne't for tlte

snrrounding comrnunitY.

Pr.onrotion of 3R principle (refuse, reduce atrcl recycle) al1lollg tlle county resideuts to ensufe

minin-tum waste is getlerated'

Plans to incorllot'ate a pt'ivate invcstor in clevclopitrg a collnty larrdfill'
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-Co

(i Treating Sunolicls llcs onsib ili tv bv h0no rin g Contruct

ation of Contract Imnlem cntation teams for cotn plex projects to n'ronitor projccts

Itations and negotiations with suppliers befot'e cotrtract signing especialty tbr complex projects

(i Resp ecting Pavme ut Practicc

-Forr ation ot'adtroc fitspection & itcceptatrce Courprittce to expetlite lcceiving ol'goocls /accepting wolk

to fa litate payment

-En ritrg sr.rpporting docuntcnts tbr payrnent are available on paylnent vouchcrs

ring necessary approvals are dotre betbre payment'

1'hc cor-rrrty coVct.rrrncnt has Lrrrrlcrtul<crr putrlic scnsitization atrd awarcttcss as a kcy pillar in

;ttorntttiott (rl litir cgrrtpclitiqn.'llris ltlls rtttll1,rv',tctl tllc uitizen irl cl':ciSion rlrAking as tilst line

ot'consu|ncr.prutcutirirr. lhc e rnpor,r,crttlLttt ltits pttltttotr:tl resllonsiblc political involvetnent iu

prornotion of t'air tr.ade competition, it is rvinning political good will to reduce public otrtcty

during enforcement of fair trade practices regulations

The County Advocates the use of approved, uniform and accurate weighing and ureasuring

staudar.ds for tr.ade transactions in orctel to elirninate unfair trade conrpetition.

'fraclcrs in the County 3lIc ctlco[lrrgc(l t0 I)atcl]t tlrcir intcllcctual rights in ordel to safe guarcl

their-innovation irgainst uutirir curtrpctition thlotrgh counter'teitirrg.

The County Goverurnent has ttrldcrtaketr ptrblic serrsitization and awareness as a key pillar in

pronlotioll of fair conrpetitiou. This has enrporvered the citizen irr decision making as first line

of consunrer plotection. Tltc et'trporve rtrlcut has plolnoted responsible political involvet]]eut in

prorno(ion of tair tracie corrrpetition, it is lvinning political gooct will to reduce ptrblic outcry

tluriug eu{ttlcelucnt o l' f lri r t racle llrltut iccs t'cgttlations

'1'hc C'otrnty Atli,Uclrtcs lltt' ttst (,1 irl)l)r()vrLl. trrtitot ttt ittttl ltcCrtratc u'cighing atrcl tueaSrtriug

stanclar.rls lor.tr.arlc rl.alns cri()lls in urrlcr to clirllintltc trnthlr tracle colllpetitioll'

Traclers in the couuty are encoulaged to Patellt tlteil intellecttral rights irr older to safe gtrald

thcir innovatiou against uufair compctition through counterfeitiug'

- Ens

ll

lll

b) IlesponsiLr[c cthicaI practices-

Corrductctl iut awarcllcss prograllllnc ttl intbrrl consrllllcls on theil'r'ights and obligationS' Tlris

safeguards thcrl against exploitation by fiaudulcrrt tradcts'

lnspects and investigatcs collsumer complaints rvith intentioll to prolnote fair tracle

cornpetition

Instituted legal proceeclings arising ti'om constttner rights complaints to remedy the agglieved

parties.

xxxlll
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iv. Monitors tr.acle clescription appliecl or1 goods ancl services to ensule they are accurate to enable

collstllnel s trral<e in forntctl t lcci sI rrrrs'

v. Maintains a corrrplairrls rr:gislcts. a sttgQcslirrtr hoxcs artcl a custolllcl care dcsk lvhe|e issues of

anti-corruPtiorr are hancl lcd'

vi.PutinplaceAnti.corruptionpostefsandconrplieswithprocurelnentregulationsinallits
activities

c) Stcrvardship of goods atrd scrvices

vii. concluctecl an ilwat'eucss progl'allrlllc ttr inlirrttr (:o11sl'lrllcrs on thciI rights and obligations' Tlris

safegtraltls therrl against cxploitation by liatrcltrle nt ttaclet's'

viii. Inspects and investigates consulnel cornplaints with irltention to plolnote fair trade

cornpetition

ix. Instituted legal proceedings alising from consumer rights cornplaiuts to remedy the aggrieved

parties.

.Ir4onitors(raclc<lcscl.iptionalrl-rlic<lclnrloo<lsatr<lscrvicesloc|]sl.l|.ctlreyarcaccL|ratetoerrable
cot'tstl lllc rs tttal<,c ittli.llttrctl tlct:isiorts'

Co t tt trt tt tr i ty E n gagutt c tt ts

The county covernnrcnt of Kakanlega engagcs with.the cotnmttttity iu a strtrctured way throtrgh

the administrative ar.ru ""r[J 
Co,ri,"t,niy-Area Adrninist'ato's'Office (CAA's) This is a

representation of the Govet'rlor's Offrce at tlre cotrmunity level' There is collaboration betweeu the

two levels of Goverrrnretrts ,"vhich lrellls thc (lounty to ttllClcl'stalld isstres affecting its residents'

livelilroods ancl discuss fro*, */cif to acldrcs.s tltctrl. Fttrtlrct', thc County cllsl-lIes that all disaster/

erretgellcy cirses itr the County have propcr itttcrvetrtiotrs '

The County also suppolts the vultlerable ancl its citizens thror'rghvariotts plogmms like shelter

irnpr.ovelrenr, clo.atio.s d-in* a;;;;uot's 
. 
christtrras tree celebratiorrs' public participatiop'

sporti.g activities, n.,r.i" o,ra-"if ,ural festivals arrd const.uction olgcndet based violence resctte

centre

5
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12, StatertreutofManagement'sRcsponsibilitics

Section I g0 of the public Finance Managenrent Act, 201 2 requires that, at the end of each financial year,

the Accounting Officer of the Municipality established by Urban Areas ancl Cities ActNo' l3 of 2011

shall prcpare financial statcnlcnts itr accor(latrcc with thc standalcls ancl lortnats presclibcd by the Public

Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Municipality nrauager is responsible fol the preparation and preseutation of the Municipality's ftnarlcial

staternents, wliich give a hrre and fair view of the state of affairs of the Municipality for and as at the end of

the financiaI year enclccl o, J.r1e 30,2023. This rcsponsibility inctutles: (i)nraintaining acleqr'rate financial

managerlterlt at'r'altgel1]ents ancl ensurillg that thesc contintre to tre effective througltout the repolting period'

(ii) nraintaining proper accounting recorcls, which clisclose with rcasonal:lc accul'acy at any timc the

fiuancial position of the Municipality, (iii)Desigrring, implenrentirlg and nraintairrirrg iutet'rral cotrtrols

relevaut to the plclraration arrd fair plcsclltatioll ol'tlrc financial statclllcnts' atl<l ctrsttriug that they arc frce

from rnaterial misstatenreuts, whetlrer cltre to erl'Or or frtrud' (iv)Sategua|d irtg the assets of the Municipality'

(v)Selecting and applying appr.opr:iate accouutirrg policies, and (vi)Making accounting estirlates that are

reasonable in the circumstarrces.

Thc Muuicipality N4arrager accepts lesporrsitriliry lilr thc {inancial staLcnlcllts' rvhich have trecn plepared

using appropr-iate trccouutitrg policies supPorted by reasorrable ancl prudeut judgrlents and estimates' ill

confonrrity witlr Inter.national public Scctor Accourrting Stancla[ds 0PSAS), and irr thc mallncl' required by

ttre PFM ltct,2012 artd [Jrltan Areas ancl Cities Act No. I 3 of 201 t ' The Municipality Manager is of the

opinion that the firrancial stateuretlts give a tt'r.re ancl fair vierv of the state of Nrltrnicipality's transactious

cluring tlre financial ycar.cnclcil Junc 30,2()23. ancl thc llnancial positiorr as al th l (ltrtc'

The Municipality Manager further coufirms the collPlctcrress of the accounting records which have bcetl

relied upon iu the preparirtiol of filaucial staterl'lents as well as the adequacy of the systerns of intenral

financial control.

In 1'rreparing the tluancial statelllellts, thc Dlrectors ltavc assessecl tlte Furld's ability to contitlue as a golng

concern ancl Nottring lras coure to the atterrtion of the Municipality Manager to indicate that the
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telelhone: l+a$+-(:o) 3zt4ooo
E-mll: info@[agkenya.go.ke
wedite: wfvv{.oagkenya.go. ke

AGH
REPPRT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KAKAMEGA MUNICIPALITY FOR THE
YEAh ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

t Ofafv your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

n. i nbp"rt on the Financial Statement that considers whether the financial statements are
jt{irty presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,

lafcounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
oft the financial statements.

B. Rpport on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
cdmpliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
gUidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
eficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
a(hieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GE]tIERAL

Enhunc ing .l cun nt ub il i t.r'

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box Joo84-oo1oo

NAIROBI

C. RfRort on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
pltrich considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
bderations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
mfnagement environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
[h]se charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
britity.

I

An urjmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
reldv{nt laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
govlerfrance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
yeal {nder review.rl
The frree parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
resf,ofrsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
PuHli{ Finance Managemenl AcL2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPqRT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I

Qu{lifed Opinion

I havelaudited the accompanying financial statements of Kakamega Municipality set out
on p{es 1 to 38, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 Jurfe, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assetsf statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Repolt {the Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023



amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kakamega Municipality as at 30 June, 2023, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012, the Urban Areas and Cities Act, 2011.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Inaccuracies in Comparative Balances

The financial statements reflect three components with comparative balances that are at
variance with the corresponding audited financial statements for the year ended
30 June, 2022 as shown below:

Item

Comparative
Balance in the

F ina ncial
Statements for

the Year Ended
30 June, 2023

(Kshs.)

Audited Financial
Statements for the

Year Ended
30 June, 2022

(Kshs.)
Variance

(Kshs.)
Depreciation and Amortization
statement of Financial Performance

4,684,O17 13,s33,184 (8,849,167)

Property, Plant and Equipment-
Statement of Financial Position

192,826,028 183,976,860 8,849,168

Accumulated Surplus-Statement of
Financial Position

176,387,010 8,849168

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the respective comparative
balances could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment amount of Kshs.289,140,289. lncluded in this is
an amount of Kshs.100,512,077 which relates to additions during the year. However, the
additional assets amount could not be verified because Management did not provide
relevant supporting documents such as payment vouchers, invoices, inspection and
acceptance reports, handover reports and completion certificates.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of property, plant and equipment
additions amount of Kshs.100,512,077 could not be confirmed.

o

167,537,842

Report of the Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
signiflcance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for conclusion on LaMulness

Repdrt [f the Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023

Ir3

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kakamega Municipality Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provrde a basis for my qualified
opinbn.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects receipts budget and
actual on comparable basis amounts of Kshs.274,435,621 and Kshs.75,906,785
respectively, resulting to under-funding of Kshs.198,528,836 or 72o/o of the budget.

Similarly, the statement reflects actual expenditure of Kshs.170,610,278 against
approved budget of Kshs.274,435,621 resulting to under-performance of
Kshs.103,825,343 or 38% of the budget.

The under-funding and under-performance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

ln the audit of the previous year, several issues were reported under the Report on the
Financial Statements and Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public
Resources. However, Management has indicated in the Progress on Follow-up of
Auditor's Recommendations section that only two issues have been resolved. No
explanation was provided on why all the issues have not been resolved in adherence to
the requirements of the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board templates.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

lll, Ll I



and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that pr rblic resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Provide Approved Budget

During the year under review, the Municipality operated without an approved budget.
Consequently, the source and approval of the amounts reflected in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts, including total expenditure for the year of
Kshs.170,610,278 could not be ascertained. This is contrary to Section 20(1Xl) of the
Urban Areas and Cities Act, 201 1 which requires a Board of a Municipality to prepare and
submit an annual budget to the relevant County Treasury for consideration and
submission to the County Assembly for approval.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Lack of Operational Autonomy of Kakamega Municipality

During the audit, it was observed that only office operations were carried out by the
Municipality Board while project implementation was being carried out by the County
Executive through the Department of Lands, Housing, Urban Areas Development and
Physical Planning. This is contrary to Section 21(1)(a) of the Urban Areas and Cities Act,
2011 which gives Municipality Boards executive authority as delegated by County
Executives.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Failure to Appoint a Municipality Administrator

During the year under review, the Municipality operated without a Municipality
Administrator. This is contrary to the provisions of Section 318 of the Urban Areas and
Cities (Amendment) Act, 2019 which states that there shall be an administrator for every
town established under this act who shall be appointed by the County Public Service
Board established under section 57 of the County Governments Act, 2012.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

4. Lack of Fixed Asset Register

During the year under review, the Management did not maintain a fixed asset register
which shows details relating to: date of purchase, supplier, cost, location, unique identification
number, accumulated depreciation and net book values. This is contrary to Regulation
136(1) of the Public Finance Management (County Governments) Regulations, 2015,
which states that an accounting officer shall be responsible for maintaining a register of
assets under his or her control or possession.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Kakamega Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023

4



The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
belierye that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Repolt QIthe Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipality for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
requie that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Municipality Board

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misslhtement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Municipality's ability to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Municipality or to cease its
operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statertents described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.



The Municipality Board is responsible for overseeing the Municipality's financial reporting
process, revierving the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Municipality's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Report of the Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipalityfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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a ldentity and assess the risks of material misstatement'of the financial statements,

ryhether due to fraud or error, design and perforrn audit procedures responsive to
tfrose risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a
$asis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
,ffaud'is higher than for one resulting from erroi;'as fraud may involve collusion,
fbrgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
{ccounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

donclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
dccounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
Exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Municipality's ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures
ih the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
dpinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Municipality to
ease to continue to sustain its services.

Bvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
ihcluding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Municipality to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

Ferform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

a

a

a

a

a

I cornmunicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timirg of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requlrements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
wherc applicable, related safeguards.

FCP

Reporlofthe Auditor-General on Kakamega Municipalityfor the year ended 30 Jttne, 2023
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298,033,043 298,033,043

5,808, s,808,s84



17. Statcmcnt Of Cash florvs for The Ycar Ilnclccl 30 June 2023

(PSASB lras prescribed the clirect prethod ofcash flow preparation/ presentation for all entities
under the IPSAS accrual basis of accounting.)

4

Descr.iption
Note 2022-2023

202U22

lfths. l(shs

Cash florvs from operating activitics

Reccipts
'lransfers from the CGl(-payments on behalf s9,906,785 l2l ,836,9r0
Tlansfers frorn County Treasury 16,000,000 28,910,250

Kenya urban support progranlme 128,628,833

Balance brought forwar.d

Total Rcccipts 75,906,785 279,375,993

Use ofgoods and services (6s,072,645) (98,0s6,393)

Staff costs (49,500) ( 156,800)

Board expenses (777,900)

Translbr to clf (340) (648)

f)epreciation and Amortiz-ati on (13,s33,184)

(e 1 ,126)

(65,900,335) (106,798,151)

Net cash llon's from opcrating activitics JJ 10,006,400 L67,537,842

Cash florvs from invcsting activitics
Pr"trchase of PPE & intangible assets

( 100,5 12,077) (183,976,860)

Proceeds flom sale ofPPE
Nct cash llorvs uscd in investing activities

(100,s 12,077) (183,976,8(r0)

Repayment of borrowings

Net cash florvs uscd in financing activities

Net increase/(decreasc) in cash & cash

cq u ivalcnts (90,505,677) (16,439,018)

Caslr And Cash Equivalents At 1 ltrly 2022 21 105,207,014 121,646,033
2l t4,70L,337 105,207,015

1, t: ri;t;: ,'r: ,,.' -i;

Payments

Finance costs

1'otal l'>ayments

Cash florvs from financing activities

Cnsh And Cash Bquivalcnts At 30 Junc 2023



Ccunty GoveYnmeut of Kakamege

ls.StatemcntofComparisonofBudget&ActualAmountsfortlreYearended30June2023

KshsKshsI(shs
Revenue 6't%

8.000 000l6 000,000)A 000,000L4 000 000
Transfers froln the County

Government 0%105,000 000105,000 000r05 000 000UDG Bal b/f 85 528,83659 906 785t45 435 621145 435 621
Pa ents on behalf of MuniciPalitY 28%198 528,83675 906,785274 435 621274 435,627Total Reven u e

Expenses 49%61 935 37665 072 645133 008 021
t )J 008 02rUse ofgoods and services 't8%

222 100777 9001 000,000l,000,000Board expenses t3%10032849,5003'17,600377,600
Staff Costs t%49,66050 00050 000Transfer to CRF 30 802 1844,t97 81635 000 00035 000,000Deprectation and Armotizatlon 96%4 487 923100 512 0'17r05 000 000105,000 000 62%Ac uisition of assets 103 825 343170 610 278274 435 62102',74 435,621enditureTotal Ex 9394 703

eriodlus for theSu

4,487,92307''1100 51105,000,000105 000 000cap ital ExPenditure

u'ut",:l;: 
underperfomance and Underabsorptio' 

-1?' ^'^"1*I:::,:liTY,":v 
delav and late disbursemerrt in exchequet

disbursements f'o*;;;l;;;ryas it's the Main source of funding to thc ftrnd'

2. Ksh. 59,906,7g5 was spent by parent ,rinistry ofLands he,ce did not pass tluough the Municipality Bank Account though budgeted under

MuniciPalitY'

5

l
tke \Jecr

-
i-

I(shs.

340
t2%

96%



CountY Gowrnment ef Kakantega

Xtkainega fuluniciPaW
-4nrual RePolr and Fi a ncial Stalcmenis fortheyear eliderl iune 30,2 023

3. Budget aPProPn ation statement does notagreerviththestatementoffinancialperfonnancebecauseoftlredifferencesinaccountlng

Reconciliation has been provided as follorvs,

en thc statcnrcnt of financiar performance and statcmcnt of comparison of budget and

Rcconciliation statement on the differcnccs benve

actuals.

Comments

Stntcnrent of
Finartcial
Performance

Statement of
Conrparison of
Budget and
Actual
AmountsClassification
I(shsRevenue

erfomance
Bal b/f not reco ized in tl.re statement of financial

0105 000 000
Urban DeveloPment Grant

Balance B/f
BalancedI6 000 000I6 000 000

Transfers from the CountY

Govemment

Balanced906 785906 785
Payments on be half of
Munict ali

ensesEx Balanced65 0'12 64565 072 645
Use of oods arrd servtces Balanced7'7'l 90071'l 900

11Se5Board Balanced49 50049 500
staff costs Balanced340340

FRC0ransferT Balanced4,191 8164 t97 816
D notizatroArmdl1 l1aot Iarecl

Amotlnts used to Pu

stateutent of Cash fl
rchase Assets u'

ows and sateme

ere recognized in the

nt of ComParisorl of Budget

and Actual Amotlnts100 5t2 017100 512 0'77

Capital Expencli ttn'eAcquisttton

of assets

6

<o
59
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I9 Notes to thc Fin:rncial Statcmcnts

n cral Intbnnation

ega Municipality is established by and derives its authority and accottntability from

Areas and cities Act 2011. The Municipality is under the Kakarnega county

rnent and is donriciled in l(enYa.

tzrtctnettt ot Conrpliancc :rntl llasis ot Prcpitrltiott

financial staternents have been prcparcd or.r a historical cost basis exccl)t tbr the

ul.ement at re-valued alnorults of certain itenrs of ilroperty, plant and equiprnent,

etable Securities alcl fi6aucial itrstrtttneuts at fair value, irnpaired assets at their estinrated

erable amouuts, arrd actuarially detert]lirrecl liabilities at their prescnt value The

ration of finarrcia[ statcnrents in contblmity rvittr Intcrnational Putrlic Scctor Accounting

Th financial statements have been plepated and prcsented in t(enya Shillings, which is tl're

tional ancl reporting currency of the Kakamega Municipality'fun

The unicipality's principal activity is Collection of Revenue ,Issuattce of Rates Clearauce

Celti icate, Issuance ol Single Busitress Pelnrits ,Building Inspectiotr , Reco rn mendatiou

for pproval of Builcling Plans ,strpervisiou of lnfiastrttcture Development and

Mai nance ,lssuance of Registration ccrtificate to Groups, cBos ,olganizatior.r and

nation of public participation and Policy Formttlation and Governauce

K

Ufu

Gov

coor

The

lne

mal'

l'cc

exe

)

pre

Sta ards (IPSAS) allows the use of estitnates aud assttmptions. lt also tequires lllallagemellt to

ise judgrnent in the p;ocess of applying the I(akalrega Mtrnicipality's accotrnting policies

Thc areas involving a higher clegrce of juclglncllt ol' cornplexity, or whcrc asstttnptions and

cstl ates are significant to the llrrartciat statctrlcnts, arc disclosetl in Note 5 oI tlrese firrancitrl

slal lneIts

7

Th{ financial statelllents have been pleparecl iu accordauce with the PFM Act, the State

Cor{por.atiorrs Act (inclttde any other applicable legislatiott), aud lntcrnational Public Sector

Acjoupting Standards (lpSAS). The accounting policies adoptecl have beeu cousistently

apdlied to all tlre years presentecl.



Cou$t! Govcr*ne nl of Kckanega
{tckcmega
Annitai Ee

l"vtunicipnlity
or! cnc! Financia! Statemo*ts far lhe vet ended ,lufis 30. 202J

3. Application ot'Nerv and rcvisecl standarrls (ll'Sz\S)

i. New cutcl tLntenclecl stanclctrcls cuul interprelctlions itr isstrc elfeclit'e in lhe year ended 30

Jwte 202i

Applicable: l'( JauuarY 2023

'thc obj ective of this Stanclard is to itnprove the re lcvauce' faithful

represeutativeuess and coluparability of the infor:nratiou that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statenlents about social

benefits. The inforn.ration provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports asscss:

(a) The uature ofsuch social benefrts provided by the Entity'

The key features of the operation of those social benefit schernes;

8

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish pt'inciplcs for thc financial

reportirrgoffinarrcialassetsanclliabilitiesthatwillpresentr.elevarrtarrd

trseftrlirrfornrationtousersoffinarrcialstatelnentsfortlreirassessulent

of the amounts, tirning aud uncet'tainty of an Entity's fttture cash flows'

lPsAS4lprovidcsttserstlf.{lnancialstatelllclltswithrrloreuseftrl

inlbluraLion than TPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classi{jcation and nreasttretnent nrodel for

financialassctstlratconsider.st[reclraracter.isticsoftlreasset's

cash flows and the objectivc for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single fbrwarcl-lool<ing expected ctedit loss rnodel

that is applicable to alt financial instrr'rments subjcct to

impainnent testing; and

. Applying an irnproved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging al'rangetl'letlts in scope of the gtridance' The rnodel

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk trlanagetnent

strategies and tl.re accountiug treatnlellt fot' iustrut1rcuts hclcl as

part of the risk managetlent stl'ategy'

ct:anldve

Applicrblc: 1'r .InnuarY 2 023IPSAS 4l: Financial

lnstrurncnts

IPSAS 42l. Social

Bencfits

(b)
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i; a!E art snd Finuncitl Sta/'eftftttle !)r the ar ended June 30,2C23

and

(c)TheirnpactofstrclrsocialberrefitslrrovidedontheElrtity'Sfinancial

pelformance, financial position and cash flows'

S 41, Financial

todments

IPSAS

fro rnIting

r lltetl ts

Applicable: 1st JanuarY 2023:

a)AnrendrnentstoIPSAS5,totrpdatetlreguidancelelatedtothe

compotrcllts of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

onritte<i when IPSAS 4l was isstred'

b) AnrencLnents to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative exatnples on

lredgiugarrdcr.editriskwhiclrweleinadvertentlyorrrittcdwlren

IPSAS 4l was isstred.

c) Ameudnrents to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accountirrg for' financial guarantee contl acts which wele

inadvertently ornitted wheu IPSAS 4l was issuecl'

cl) Amenclnrents to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifying financial illstruments on initial adoption of accrual

basis IPSAS which were inaclvettently onritted when IPSAS 4l

was issued.

I r mpt'ovelllcrlts

SAS

rlpplicablc Ist ,Iuttunr.l' 2023

" IPSAs 22 Disclosttre of Financial Information abotrt lhe General

Gotternment secfor. Aurendrnents to refer to the latcst Systern of

National Accouuts (SNA 2008).

./PSIS39:EmployeeBeneJitsNowdeletestlreterlncornposite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IPSAS'

" ./PSzl S 29: Financictl instruments: Recogttiti.ott antl Measuretnent

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is

now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable fi'om l" January

2023.

9

A



County Git,L:r ii r;trt,t ttj' frlakamega

Ka kamega fu! u nicipality
Annual Repart and Financiat Staten ertts.tat thzye trr efided ,lune i0.2023

IPSAS 43 Appticablc I'r JanuarY 2025

The standarcl sets out the principles for the recogrritiou' measurement'

presentatiotr,arrddisclosureofleases.Theobjectiveistoensuretl.ratlessees

and lessors provicle relevant infolmation in a nranner that faithfully rePlesents

those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial

Statentents to assess tlre effect tlrat leases lrave otr tlre f,rnarrcial positiorr,

financial performauce and cashflows of an Entity'

Tlrerrewstarrdardrequir.esentitiestorecogrrise,llleastll.eatrclpresetrt

intbr:mation on right of ttse assets aud lcase liabilitics

Assetstlratmeetthecr.iteriatobeclassitleclastrcld[or.saletobetrreasltredat

tlrelowerofcarryingalllol.ll.ltancl[airvaluelesscoststosellarrdtlre

depreciation of suclr assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held tbr sale to be presented

separately in the staterncnt of financia[ position and the results of cliscoutinued

be prcserrtecl sellarately in the statenlent of finarrcial

202s

operations to

pcrfornrance.

Applictthle I't Jantttttl'

Thc Starrdard leqr'rires,

IPSAS 44:

Nou- Current

Assets Helcl

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

ii. New and anrcnded standards and interpretations in isstte but not yet effective in the yectr

ended i0 June 2023

Earllt sleplisn of standards

I(akanrega Municipality dicl not early - aclollt arry nerv or atltctrtled standards in the l'inancial
ut

yeal'

t0
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to finattcial statemcnts ctt trtirtuctl)

nilicau t Accounting Policics

ar ended. lune 30,2023,}

a) vcnuc rccognition

Rev ues fronr rron-exchange transactionS with other govelnnlellt entities are nreasured at fair

valu a.d recognizcd o1 obtaining control of the asset (cash, goocls, seryices and propeLty) if

the t r]sfer is free frorn colditiops and it is probable that the econontic benefits or servlce

pote al related to the asset tvilt flow lo the Entitlt and can be measurecl reliably To the extent

ere is a relatecl condition attachecl that u,otrlcl give risc to a liability to fepay the anlotttlt'

oullt is l'ecordecl i1 the statelnetlt of finalcial position and lcalised in ttte statement of

1lnar ial perfollapce over the *seful life of the assets that has beel acquired trsipg such funds

ii) cvcnu c froln cxcltangc trlns:rctiotls

I tttc sl itt co tu e

Inte t incorne is accrued usiug the effective yield method. The effective yield discottuts

ted future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

ing arnount. Thc method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to detelminc

that t

thc a

esti

c

lnte st iuconre for each g eriod

l,) udgct irrlbrrnation

riginal btrdget for FY 2022123 was approved by the County Assernbly on 30'r' Jtrne 2022

uent revlstolts or additional a1:ptolrriations were tnade to the approved budget in
The

Sub

rdance with spccitic approvals fro nr the appropfiate atrthorities. Thc aclditional

app priations are addecl to the original buclget by the Municipality upon receiving the

[es tive approvals in orcler to couclude the final buclget. Accordingly, the l(akamega

Mu icipality recor.ded additiorral Budget appropriations following the County Asserlrbly's

val

Th Municipality's buclget is prepared on a different basis to the actual incolne afrd expetrditure

losed in the financial statements. The financial statenlents are prepared on accrual basis

ap

lt

dis

i) Revcnuc fronr non-cxchnnge transactions

Trun$ers Jrotn othcr gove ntttta t cttlities
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Kaka nega f,l d n icipatiry
Atznua! Il. od rrrid Fitirttcia! Stsienents ttheYear eldcd June 30, 2A23

using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in tlte statenrent offinancial performatrce'

whcreas tlre btrdgct is prcpared on a cash basis Thc alnoullts in the financial

statel.rents !&er.e recast l.r.orn the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by lrresentation

to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A comparison ofbudget arrd actual amounts'

prepared on a conrparable basis to the approved budget, is tlten presented in the statement of

comparison of buctget and actual amounts. A statetnent to teconcile the actual amounts on a

cornparable basis included in the statetnellt ol cornparison of budget and actual atnottttts and

the actuals as pet'tlte statelnent of [irrancial pellbrrtrance ltas lrcctr pt'cseuted Lrnder sectiorr ol

these linancial statenrellts.

c) Propcrty, plant and cquiPmcnt

All property, plant and equipment are statecl at cost less accutlulated depleciatiouand

impailrrrcrrt losscs. Cost includes expendittrlc that is clirectly attributatrlc to the acquisition of

the iteurs. When significant pa[ts of p[opefty, plant and eqtlipr.tlent ate required to be replaccd

at intervals, the Municipality recogflizes such patts as individual assets with specific useful

lives and depreciates tlrem accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfoilned, its

cost is recogrrized in the carrying alnount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if tlte

recognition crileria are satisfiecl. All other rcPair arrd maitrtetratrce costs at'e tecognized in

surplus or <lefrcit as incur'led. whet'e an asset is acquired iu a uon-excharrge t|ansaction Ibr nil

or nonrinal consideration the asset is initialty ttreasttred at its fair value.

l(akarnega Municipality Depreciatcs and Annotizes its Assets at thc Reccotnended rates as

folo',vs,

Builclirrgs 5'lo,

Motor: Vehicles 25%

Plant ancl MachinerY 15%

The Kakaurega Murlicipality Depreciates its assets on a reducing Balauce metllod'

d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially lecogrlized at cost' The cost of intangible

assets accluirecl in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the excharrge'

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accutnttlated

aurortization ancl accumulated impainnent losses' lnternally generated intarlgible assets'

excluding capitalized cleveloprnent costs, are not capitalized and expe[rdittlre is reflected in

t.

ii.

iii

t2
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ar endeti June J0, 2#23Att al Report utttl Financtul Statewents for the ye

surp us Or deficit in the period irr which the expendittrre is incurred. The useful lit'e of the

lnta gible asscts is assesscd as cithcr tjnite or indcfinite

e) naucial instrumcnts

IPS S 41 addresses the classification, nreasurernetrt and de-r'ecognition offinancial assets and

fina ial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new irnpairrnent model for

ial assets. The entity cloes not have an1' hedge relationships and therelbre the new hedge

Th

ctcc ttnting nr!es hcwe no irnlttrct ort the Contpany's .financial stolenlents' (cunend as

0PP riate)

Afi taucial instrurlelt is any contlact that gives lise to a finaucial asset of one eutity and a

llna cial liability or cquity iustlrrnrent ol'another entity. At irritial recogrrition, the entity

l'l-lc turcs a finatrcial asset or financiat liability at its fair valtre plus or nritrus, in tlre case of a

fina cial asset or financial liabitity not a[ lail valr.re through surplus oI (leficit, tlansaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acqtrisitiot'r or issue of the financial asset or financial

liab lity

Fin ncial asscts

silicatlon of linancial assets

entity classifies its financial assets as sutrsequently t'ueasured at altlortise(l cost, faiI value

CI

co

O11

thr' rugl.r net assets/ equity or fair value thlough stttpltrs and deficit on the basis of both the

elr t 's rnanagement rnodel for financial assets and thc contracfual cash florv characteristics of

thc lnancla I asset. A financial asset is meastlled at aurortized cost lvheu the Ilnancial asset is

lre I rvithin a lnanagl:lllctlt nrotlcl whose ob.icctive is to hold financial assets ill older to collect

ractual cash flolvs and the contl'actual tcrrrrs of the tjnancial asset give risc on specified

da to cash flows that are solely payments of Principal and interest on the principal

ou tanding. A financial asset is t11easttred at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is treld

wl in the management nrodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting colltractual

ca tflows and selling fiuancial assets and the coutractual ternrs of the financial asset give lise

specified clates to cash flows that a|o solely paynrerrts of plincipal an(l irltcrest on the

pr cipal amouut outstanclilg. A fila1cial asset shall be tneasured at fair value through surplus

eficit unless it is nreasured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unlessor

l3

I
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an entity has rlade ifl'evocable election at ilitial tecognition 1br particular irlvestmcllts in eqtttty

tnstrurncnts

Sullscqucnt measurcment

Based on the business nlodel ancl the cash flow cltaracteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortizecl cost or fair value categories for finaucial instruments' Movemer.rts in fair

value are preseutecl ir.r either.surphls or deficit or through rlet assets/ equity subject to certaitl

criteria being rnet.

Amortizcd cost

Financial assets tllat are trelcl for collection ol contractrral cash flows where those cash l]ows

represent solely payurents of plincipal and irlterest, ancl tltat a[e llot designated at fair value

through sur.plus or deficit, ale tneasurecl at amortized coSt. A gain or loss otr an instrtttrrent that

is snbsequcntly nreasurecl at anrorlizccl cost aucl is rrot pa|t of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is cle-recognizecl or impaired' Interest inconre fron'r

tlrese financial assets is included in firtance iucoure using the effective interest rate tnethod'

Fair valuc tlrrough nct assets/ cquity

Financial assets that are held tbr collcctio[ ofcontractual cash flows and for selling thc

financial assets, where the assets'cash flows represent solcly payrnents ofprincipal and

interest, are rrcasurecl at fair.value through lret assets/ equity. Movernents it-t the carrying

all-lount arc takcn through net assets, except for thc recognition of irnpairment gains or losses'

intelest reveplrc ar-rd foreign exchaugc gains ancl losscs which are rccognized in surlllus/dcficit

htterest iucorlc tlorn these financial assets is incltrclecl irr firrance itrcotne using the elfective

interest rate mcthod

Fair valuc through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do l1ot meet tl're clitelia for alroltized cost ot'fair value through net assets/

equity ar.e rncasurecl at fair value through surplus or dcficit. A business modcl where the cntity

tnanages liuancial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows thtough solely the sale of the

assets would result in a lair value throrrgh surpltrs or deficit model'

t4

Trade and other rcceivables

Tracle a.cl other receivables are recognized at tair values less allowances for any uncollectible

alrlounts. '[-rarlc ancl otlrcr rcceivablcs arc asscssccl tbr rnrPairnrcnt oll a colltintrirrg lrasis' An
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S ate is made of dogbtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding atnoutrts at the

yc

I

TI

end.

airment

entity assesses , on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

wl its financial assets carried ett arnortizect cost arld fair valtle through net assets/equity' The

en ty recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estinrates and

SI ificaut juclglrents made by managenrent iu deternrining the expected credit loss (ECL)

Fi nncinl lia bilitics

CI ss iticrlion

Th eltity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measnred at anrortizecl cost except for

fin ncial liabilities I'neasured throtrgh plofit or loss

InvcntoricsD

ln

t'c

'1

its

Fi shed goods an<l worl< i1 progress: cost of direct nraterials artcl labour ancl a prolloltion of

ntory is tneasut'ed at cost trpon initial I'ecognition. To the extent that iuventory was

ved tluoggh non-exchalge transactions (for no cost or for a non'rinal cost), the cost of the

ntory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs iucured in bringing each product to

rqsent location arrd corrditions are accotlnted for, as follows:

ruaterials: purchasc cost using ttrc rvcightccl avcl'ilgc cost mcthocl

n-l rutacturing overleads basccl on the norrnal operating capacity, but exchlcling borrowing

co

l iuitiat recognition, inventory is mcasured at thc lower of cost alld nct realizable value

H ever', to the extelt that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

no inal clrarge, that class of inventory is ureasured at tlre lower of cost and cul'reltt replacement

Net realizable value is the estirrrated selling price in the ordinary cotlrse ofoperations, lessco

th estimated costs of coulpletion and the cstimatecl costs necessal'y to makc tlic sirlc, exchaDge,

or istribution. Inventories are recoguizecl as an expense when deployecl for utilization or

co sunrption in the ordinary course of operations of the Mtrnicipality

A
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g) Provisions

Plovisiols are recognized whel the Municipality has a preseut obligation (legal or constructive)

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources enrbodying econonric

benetrts or service potential will be requiled to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can

be urade ol tlre amouut of the obligation. whcre thc Municipali(y expects some or all of a

provision to bc reimbursed, for exalrple, uuder atl iusurance colltract, tl-re reit,rbursemeut is

recognized as a separate asset only when the reilnbul'sement is virtually certain' The expense

relating to ar.ry pr-ovisiorl is prcsented in the statcment of financial performance net of any

reiruburserleut

h) Social Ilcncfits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

nreet the eligibility criteria, ii) rnitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of

society as a wholc. The cntity recognises a social trcncfit as all cxpcllsc lbl thc social benetit

sclrenre at thc silnle tintc ttlat it t'ecogrliscs a tiatrility. -l hc liability lor thc social berle l-rt scheme

is nreasurecl at tl.re best estirnate of the cost (the social benefit payr]1ents) that tl're errtity will

iucur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability'

i) Contingcrrtlinbilitics

The Municipality does not recognize a contiugetrt liability, btrt discloses details of any

contingencics irr the notes to the frna[cial statelnellts unless thc possibility of an outflow of

resources embodying ecollolllic benefits or service potentiaI is remote'

l6
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rs cant accotuttittg policics cotrtirrued)

wlro

ntingent asscts

unicipality does not r.ecognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset

existence is contingent on the occurrellce or non-occtlffence of one or tnore uncertain

events not wholly within the control of the Mtrnicipality in the notes to the financial

ents. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensule that developments are

firtur

s til

i)

'flre

app riately reflected in the financial statenletlts. If it has beconre virtually certain that an

of econontic benefits or ser.vice potential witl arise and the asset's vahte can beinfl

me red

ly, the asset and the relatecl reveutte are recoguized in the financial statetnents of the

Pe in whictr the chatrge occltrs

l() aturc nnd purposc of rcscrves

The unicipality creates ancl nraintains reserves iu tertrrs of specitic requirelneuts

r) hangcs in accounting policies antl cstitnates

'lhe unicipality reco_uuizes ttte efIects ol changes in accorlnting policy retlospectively' The

ts of changes iu accounting policy ale applied Prospectively if letlospectivc application is
e

nr)

The

lm ctical.

mployec bcnelits - Rctircmctrt bcncfit pltns

Municipality Provicles retirerllent benellts IbI its ernployees and clirectols' Del'ined

co ribrrtion plans are ltost-enrploynrent bencfit platrs ttnder rvhich the Murricipality pays f'rxed

ributions into a separate fund ancl will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
co

fu er contributions if the Municipality does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee

fits r.elating to ernployee service in the culrent ancl prior periods. The contributions to
be

scl c obligations tbr. thc paynrcnt of lctironrcnt bencllts arc chargcd against incorne in the

yca in whicli tlrey bcconre payatrle. De finetl bene[it plans arc post-enrployrrrcnt bencfit plaus

ot tharl defiled-contributiol plans. The defiged beleltts are actuarially valued tri-annually

ol'r he projected r.rnit credit ruethod basis Deficits identified are recovered throttgh lump sum

p ents or increased future contributions on proporlional basis to all participating enrployers

co[tribLrtions anrl lump sum paylllents recluce the post-entploymeut betref-tt obligationTh

l1
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(S i gnili can t acco t t nli ng p oli cics co rt t i rt u etl)

n) liorcign cu rrcncy transactions

Transactions ip foreign cunencies are initially accounted for at the ruling late of exchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade cl'editors or debtors denominated in foreign cun'ency are

reportecl in the statement offinancial positiou leporting date by applying the excltange rate on

that clate. Exchange clifferences arising I'ronr the settletnenl. o[cleclitors, or tiorrr the reporting

of creditors at rates {iflerent fi'orrr tfuose at lvlriclr they wete initially recorded during the period,

are recognizecl as iucome or expenses in the period in which they atise.

o) Borrorving costs

Borrorving costs ar.e capitalized against qualifying assets as part of Ploperty, plant and

eqnipment. Such borr.owing costs al'e capitalizccl over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or colstructed and borrowings have been iucurred. Capitalizatiou ceases whet't

constructio5 of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statemellt of

financial performance.

p) Itelated pa rtics

The Municipality regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert coutrol

inclivicluatly or jointly, or to exercisc significant infltrctrcc ovet'the Municipality, or vice versa.

Members of key managemeltt are regardecl as related parties and courpt'ise the Board melnbels,

the Municipality Managers and Municipality Accountatlt.

q) Cash antl cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalelts comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-terur deposits on call

and highly liquicl investnrents with an original nraturity of thrce morlths or less, which are

readily colvertible to known amoults of cash ancl are subject to iusignificant risk of char1ges in

value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various colnmercial banks at the end of

the financial year. For the purposes of these financial statemerlts, cash and cash eqttivalents

also irrclude short-ter-ln cash impl'ests ancl advances to autholisecl public ofiiccls and/or

instil.utions whiclr were not surrenderecl or accouuted fol at the end of the fiuancial year.

l8
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acco u ntitt g p olici es co nti n t r cd)

a tivc lig u res

ec saly comparative figures for the previous finarlcial yeal have been amended or

to couform to the required changes il"r presentatiou

ts after thc rcporting Period

ft the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavotrrable, that occur

e repol-ting date atrd the date wlren the financial statements are atrthorized for issue

of evetrts can be identified

that provide eviclepcc of conclitions that existed at the rcpolting date (adjusting
sc

ft

t

the reporting date); and

lrat ar.c indicative ol corrclitiorls that arose aller the reporting dalc (non-adiustittg

the reportitrg tlu te).

ipatity shoutcl indicate whether there are nraterial adjusting aucl uot.t- adjusting

r the reporting period

cy

I staterrents are presentecl in Kenya Shillings (lGhs.) and the valtres rounded off to

hilling.t
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Annoel Repu'! utttl ltinanci$l Statemetds far tltr Year euded Jutte i0.2023

5. Significant judgments and sottrces of estimation uncct'tainty

The ltreparatiou of t|e Mulicipality's financial statelDellts in coufotntity with IPSAS l'eqLlires

mallageulent to nrake j udgnrents, estinrates and assurnptiotts that affect tl're reported anlounts of

revcllues, expepses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosule ofcontingent liabilities, at the end

of the reportipg period. However, uncertainty about these assltlllptions and estirnates could

result in outcolres that require a nlaterial adjustureut to the carrying alnount of the asset or

liability aflfected in future periods.

State att judgernents, estimates and asstttnptions uradc.

Estimates and assunrptions.

Tlre l<ey assunrptiols corrcerling the futule arrcl othel key sottt'ces of estinratiolr trncertairtty at

tlre rcporting tlatc, tfiat havc a significaut lisk of causing a trratcria[ adjtrstment to thc carrying

amoults of assets a1d liabilities withip ttre lext finaucial year, are described belolv. The

Municipality based its assumptions and estinlates or1 pararl.reters available wlrerr the

consolidated t'inancial statements wcl'e prcpared. However, existing circumstances and

assumptiorrs about future developnrents rlay change due to nrarket changes or circttnrstattces

arising beyolc'l the coltrol of tl're Municiltality. Suctr chauges ale reflected in the assunrptious

when they occur.

Uscful livcs and residual values

T[e useful livcs ancl rcsiclual values of assets arc assesscd trsirrg the following inclicators to

inlornr po(crttiirl l"r,rtu rc use attd valtrc lt'otlt ciisllosal:

I ) The conclitiou oflthe asset bascd orr the assessttrent ofexpcrts enrployed by the

Municipality.

Il )The nature of tlre asset, its susccptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

III )The nature of the ptocesses in wl.rich the asset is deployed'

lV )Availability offunds to replace the asset.

V )Changes in the nrarket in relation to the asset.

20
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to tlrc Financial Stutamutts

ransfcrs from the County Governmcnt-Paymcnts made on bchalf

ransfers fi'om cottntl' Treasu rY

nya urb:tn support Progrllmmc

nterest incotnc

on
,l

o

by Couuty on behalf of the entitYen tzt 83 (r 9t059 906 785

tzl 836 9r0s9 906 785't o I al

i|zz-zozt
hs

16 9r0 250

2$21122

Kshs.'

l6 000 000
T

1

IAI

t'ei

ls fe
$ury

28 910 250't o al

t28,628 833a ttt'ban support progt'amnlc (KiJSP)

128 (t2ti 833

I st irrcome l'r'orn investtnerrts

t inconre on bank deposits

o I intcrcst in corne

2l

Paym

frorn County Goveruuretrt

r 6,000,000

'l'otal
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11. StatT costs

22- 2J

s

3,066, 157 26 496 419

567,567

Donrestic travel aud strbsistence 3 478 980

Printin adveltisin lies & selvicesstr 939 472 't86 240

I{os itali lies and servicessu

S ialized rnaterials and services 812 450

Office and eneral su lies and services 5l 858 815

Otlrer o cratin ex clr scs 135 810

Routine llrainterlarlce - vehicles and othel
e ut tnent's

(r3 I 335 128 250

Routine maintenance - other assets 487 280

Bank char 39634

Refined fuels 159 900

Total 65 0'12 645

Dcscription

.,
022-1 029 2021122

Salaries and wages-Casuals 49 500 1s6,800

Stafl gratuity

SociaI security contributiot't
'l'otrrl 49 00 ls6 tt00

22

10. Use of Goods and Serviccs

util ics attc'l services

I

Comrn urr ication su lies and services I ,077,681
2,56s,5s0

2,895,245 7,383,901

1,137,610

56,438,745

2,001,93'7

40,000

98,056,393
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ar cndtd,lune 30, 20?,3
lt.

€

I

the Financiul Statartt ctrts

d expenses

I llr nce costs2l

I ep ation nnd arnortization

hs.

enrbels'Honclraria

o

tl

190,200g lo ances

bs stence Allowancesta S

777 900

9r t26

I t1 oans fro m banks
9r t26

30t 649t,236,567Lt lll
862,367o C structiou

2,520,0002 t42 000I Machinery -Refuse tracl<
4 684 017

o

23

279,000

308,700

Total

I(shs.

Total

I

8r9,249

4,197,8 I 6



Cou *t1, Govcr**ent oJ' Kakemega
Kckum ega fulu nicipality
Annnat P,

Notes to thc I;inancial Statcnrcttts

15.'fransl'cr to County Revcnue fiund

16. Cash ancl cnslt e quivalettts

*nC Fi aficial Slstefierrts 0t' the ended lune 30, 2023

648340Transfel to CRF
648340Total

2071122 :'I

I(slts. l(slts.

Cnlrent accoullt l4 70r 1'7 105,207,0 l5

Total crsh rrn<l cash cqrrivalcnts l4 701 1'1 105,207,015

24
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rt ar; ei Fi$ant:ia! Stctertents att ihz ar ended lwae 30,242-t

c Iri rt ancial Statetncttls

analysis of the cash and cash cquivnlents arc as lbllorvs:

ablcs fronr exchangc transactions

t

-jrj.
rr.n.f.l n4

urr 3nt accounta)

r 05,20 t ,15414,680,983t26036s143

(
c

.al

Ial

a

t
rne

Ar
ga Urban Development
rcount I(CB

01141632089800
Kak [11e1 ;a Municipatity

T l t l

-2023

lfths.I(shs.D ip ion

C I t' cnt Rc cciva b lcs

(S CO, wal and electricity debtors

ge debtorso (lh rex ha

Lr )s latl eut allowanceI111

T ) t lrc cl urblcs fronr excharrgc tra tt s actiotrs

25

Antfual R

5,86020,354

105,207,01514,,701,337

202u22
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(Notes to the Financial Statements Continued)

18. ProPertY, Plant and EquiPment

Mach, Cons. ction
: t. Road

197 510,04416,S00 000
26 032 983At l't Jul 7071

Additions

salsDis

Transfers/Ad ustments 191 510 044737 429,71416,800 00047t7 24726 032 83
191 510 044At3 0'h June 2022 137 429 71416 800,0004141L'I26 032 933
10 0, 512,tt1710.77At I't Jul 42,036 402

58 47 5,615
Additions

alsDis
293 022,121Transfer/A d ustrnents 779 466 11616,800,00075 111,

At3 0'h June 2023

De reciation AndIm airment

4 6S4,017At lst Jul 2,520,000862,367I 301 649
reciattonD

4 684 017im airment 2 520 000s62 367301 649 4 634 017At 30th June7022 ) 520 000s62
1 01 649 4 197,816At lst Jul 2 t42 000819,2491, 236,567

reciattonD

Dis osals

Im airment
8 8Bl 332

Transfer/A d ustment 4 662 000616681I16) 533
At 30th June 2023

,L0

.,' ..'. Iotat
:Capit tl Worl< In

. '.' Prbgress 
-

'ri

" . Kshs
137 ,429,'714t'7,24'1 ,347

26,032,983

2021

6'l
I

2022
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K a k arn e g a lv[ u n i ctP a I iU

l.ThedepreciatiorrfigureforFY202lt?022wasrestatedtoIGlr4,684,0l7fromIGhl3'533,184.
2. The Depreciation rates adopted by [1kar:clvrrni.ipori,y 

are Syoa*r.,y o,, Land and Bu,dings,25% Annua'y on Motorvehicles '15%

A,nually on Pla,t una ruru"ilriCfhe Nau,icifality depieciates the assets on a reducing Balance Method'

rt ard Fixa cial Stcteftrenrs ()r lhe r ended.lane 30, 2023

28INet Book \/alues
ouneAt3

Ar3 Oth June 2023

27

{'.r.. *1, ll,t atnt Lett qf Ko.ia4ineFg

iltpual
-

I
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Kakamega Municipality

eu.r enrletl lttte. i0, 202i,4ntucl R orr awi Fin*lcial Slotemenls .!itrthcy

Notcs to Tlrc I;irrttncicrI. Statem cnts Cotrtinnetl)

19. Tracte and other payables frorn exchange transactions

20. Provisions

Reteutions

Accrued expenses
'[otal trade ancl other paYablcs

Descr,iption

1 023 2A2U2?

l(s s.

Balauce at the beginnirrg of the year

Additional Plovisions (Specrfy)

Provision utilised

Bnlancc at thc cnd of tlre Yca r

Current Portion of provision

Long terrn portion of pl'ovision

Total Provisions

28

Trade payables
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!1 {torle*;tttr:I: r.l !{$;:!,tii!i't ir

! rr,!9,/. ii u rt i'.: i, :i I i !\.
I ul $.epot't axd l;inonda! Sta!err!t,7!s j ir lhe ves erztleti ,lrrfie :i$' !{2J

to tlrc Financial Stutcttrcttls

2 clatcd party balanccs

Nattrrc of rclatcd Jlarty rclationshipsa

c I(ey rnanagcrncnt reln u ncration

Due from rclatcd Parties

2tJ2u22z$22-2423

hs.
:l,l

sfols to related parties

sfers fiorn related parties'T r:lI

T Iar

z02ll27' ,2022.2023

I(shs.Ifths.D es

Menrbcrs 777,900I] oa

K Managelnent Compeusatiotr

777,900
.I

otr rl

2022.20

from palent Ministry 8,000,000t Iue

8,000,000.I
o t nl

29

entilies arld other parties related to the Municipality include those parties who have abitity to

.*.rfir" control o1. 
"*"."ise 

significant influeuce over its opelatilg and finarrcial decisions'

nelafed parties include managelnent personnel, their associates and close family nrembers'

The fvlunicipality is related to the following entities:

a) the County Govelunrent.
I

b) fhe Palerrt Cotrnty Govcrtrtrrcttt lvlinistry.

c) founty Assembly.
I

d) t.V managenrerlt.

e) 
{4unicipality 

Boald; etc.

b) I Ilclatecl party transactions

lfthi. 'l
lli ,'l

28,9 10,25059.906,785

28,910,25059,906,785

r'
.4.
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Notcs to the [;itnncial Staleme ttts

22. Financial risk managcment

The Municipatity's activities expose it to a variety of financial Lisks including credit and

liquidity risks and effects of 
"hurg., 

in tbreign cul'rerlcy' Tlre Municipality's overall risk

matlagelllent progratllme focuses on urrpredictability of changes irl the bttsitress euviroumettt

and seeks to 0riniu.rize the potcntial advcrsc ctfcct of such risks on its pcrformance by setting

acceptable levels of risk. The Municipality does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to

ensure that credit is only extended tocttstotners witl1 an established credit histoty'

The Municipality,s financial risk nranagetnent objectives and policies are detailed below:

I. Crcdit risl<

The Municiltality has expostr[e to creclit risl<, rvhich is the lisk that a counterpalty will be

tunablc to pay atrouuts ir', futl *h"n cluc. Crcdit risk aliscs fIorl cash and cash equivalents' and

deposits with banl<s, as well as tracle and othcr receivables and available-for-sale fitrancial

investments.

Mauager.nent assesses the credit quatity of eachcustomer', taking into accotlnt its frnancial

position, past exper.ience and other factors. Indivitlual risk limits are set based ou iuterual or

external assessmcltt irl accordance ',vith linrits set by tlre clirectors' The anrounts prescuted irr the

statenlelrt ol finarrcial position trre net of allowatlccs fot'clotrbtf trl recciVatrles' estinrated by the

Municipality's utiulagolrlerlt basecl otr prior cxpct'icllce ancl thcir asscssl'l'lcnt of the currcnt

econornic euvirollment. Tlre carlying anlount of firlancial assets lecolded in the financial

statements representing ttre tvtunicipatity's tnaxinru[r exposure to credit risk without taking

accoLlnt of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

The custonrers uncler. the fulty performing category are paying their debts as they continue

tracling. Tlre crcdit Iisk associated with these receivables is rni[rinral arrd the allowance for

uncollectible alnounts that the Municipality ltas recognised in thc trrtancial Statel-nellts is

consiclcrcd adcquatc to cover any potentially irrccoverable anloltllts' The Municipality has

signihcant couceutration of credit risk on atnounts due'

TlreMunicipalityBoardsetspoliciesarr<lob.|cctivesandlaysdowtrlraratrreterswitlrirrwlriclr

tlte valiotts asllects of credit tisk tratlagenretrt are operated'

ll. LiquiditY risl< mnnagemeut

Ultinrate responsibility for liquidity risk t]-Iauagetnent rests with the Municipality Manager'

wlrolrasbuiltanapplopriateliquiclityriskmanagementframeworkforthemanagementofthe

rnediunr and long-tclnr liquidity tnallagctncnt recluircrlrcnts' The
Mtrnicipality's short,

Municipality manages

cash flows.

liquidity risk through cotltitlttous monitoring of forccasts and actual

30
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The ble betow feprescnts cash t'lows payable by the Munioipality under non-delivative

finan at liabitities by ttreir r.emaining contractual nraturities at thc rcporting date' The arlounts

discl sed in the table are the contractuat undiscouutecl cash flows. Balances due 
"vithin 

12

s equal their carrying balances, as the irnpact of cliscountirrg is not significant

Thc

the

ltl0n

III. Marl<ct ris l<

oard has put in place an intcrnal auclit fturction to assist it in assessing thc risk faced by

unicipatity on an ongoing basis, evaluate arld test the design ancl effcctiveness of its

I accounting and operational controls

Mar

aud

t riSk is the risk arising frorn changes in mafket prices' sr'rch as interest rate' eqtllty pllces

reign cxchangc rates which will affcct ttre Municipality's incon're o[ the value of its

g of fi[ancial instrumelts. The objective ofl tnarket risk tlanageruent is to nrauage aud

I rnar.ket risl< exposures rvitlrin acceptable PaIal'lleters, rvhile optinrising tlre t'eturn'

It rcsponsibitity for Iranaging nrarkct risk rcsts with ttrc Atrdit and l{isk Managct]rent

holcl

collt

Ove

becn

I1

Co ittec TlreMunicipality,sFirranceDepadnrentisresporrsiblefortlredevelopmentof

dcta ecl r:isk tnartagenlerlt policies (subiect to review ancl approval by Audit and Risk

Ma gcmerlt conrnrittee) and l'or the clay-to-clay itnpletnentatiorr of those policies 'fhere has

no clraugc to the N4unicipality's cxposufc to trtnrkct risks tlr tltc urllttttct in wtrich it

IIlZI

IV.

The

an)

gcs and llleasures thc risl<.

Foreign currency risk

Municipality has trausactional curreucy exposures. Such exposttre arises throtrgh

Pr,r ases of goocls and scrvices that arc donc in curLcncies other than the local ctll'fcllcy

I rtv iceS dcnorninzrtetl in [oreign cttt'retrcics arc paicl aftcr 30 tlays fi'onr thc tlatc ol'thc invoice

and onversiol at the tilne of payrlelt is ctr.rne usirrg tfie prevailing exclratrge rrtc"l'he carrying

nt of the Municipality's foreign cllrt'ency denonrinated monetal'y assets and n'lonctaly

ali lities at the end of thc reporting period are as follows

on

Tlr tbllorving tablc tlerlorrslratcs tlte cl'tcct orr the }rtrtrd's stittelllerlt ol'tjrralrcilrl pertbrnrance

pplying the sensitivity fbr a rcasonabtc Possible change in the cxchangc rate ofthc three

ma tBnsAction cuuencies, with all other variables lteld constant. The reverse would also

r if the I(enya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constaut
oc

3l

i

a

T
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V. Intcrcst rate risl<

lnter.est ratc risl( is tlrc r.isl< that tho cntity's financial condition nray be aclvelscly aflected as a

result oIchapges in ipterest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises frotn bank deposits'

This exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises

mainly frorn interest rate movelrlel'Its on the Fund's deposits'

To manage tlre interest rate Iisl<, lnallagenlent ltas endeavottlecl to banl< with institutions that

oft'er favourable iuterest rates

72
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tlt Iri n a n ci u I S ta te r ncr tts

ital rislt Inlnitgclllcnt.

tl e of the Municipality's capital risl( managernent is to safeguard the Municipality's

ntitlucasagoingconceln'TlreMtrnicipalitycapitalstructulecomprisesofthe

unicipality's:

e

it

t

I

t

I

bj

to

.l

Iesetveal ti

vclopmcnt Glants/MuniciPalitYC I

ul ted surplusLI

ll dstal

tal o wll-rgs

S and bank batances

t excess cash and cash equivalents)
(,

-) -1
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20. Appendices

Appentlix 1. l'r<lgress on Foltorv up of Au<Iitors llecornurendations'

Tlre following is the summary of issues raised by tlre external auditor, and trratragenrent

commcnts that wcre provided to the auditor'

't:,-l '.
I

' 'f,imefra

I

I

I

i

i

Issu c i Observation

tne:

uta

cotnments :, Resolved )'o'!

issua to be

h

cry)ect lhe
external

audit

lteport 
I
i.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Unconlirnrecl b:rlanccs
Thc statemcnt of chatrges irl net assets reflects a balancc

of Kshs.l2l .646.033 itr respect

of surplus as at 0 t July,202l. IIowever, the source ol
the balance could not be confirnred

since this is the first set of firallcial statcrnents of
the Municipatity which have becn

prepared for a period of twentytwo (22) nronths

beginning 0 I Septenrber,2O2O.

Further. thc statetnetrt of cash flor'vs lcl'lects

balances of t<shs.1 tr',,439,0 lt3) and

IGhs.12l ,64(r,033 in respcct of uct incrcase irr cash atld

cash equivalents and cash and

cash equivalents as at 0l July 2021' Sinrilarly, thc

source of thc balarrces could not be

coufirurcd since this is the first set of financial

statelrleltts of tlre Mtlnicipality which have

lreen preparc<l for a peliod of twenty-two (22) nronths

beginning 0 I September,202O.
tn aaOitio,r, the statetncnt of financial position reflects

abalance of IGhs.121,646,033 in

respect of Fund balance brought forward as at 30

June, 2022. However, suPPofting

documents lbr tlre balance brotrght forward was nol

provicled
leteness N/a

Not

Resolved

Part one
The batance of ksh

l2l ,646,033 was

sourced frorn the

following set of
items:-
I. Urban
develoPment
account(udg)
iicc0Lllll 110.

t260:r,(r5'741 kcb

kakamega
Ksh. I 05,20 l, I 55

li. Kakatnega
township oPerations

account
no.0l141632089800
coop-bank kakmega
Ksh 5,860(bank
reconciliation
statement,and
rninutes of board
surveY )
Iii. Refuse truck
37cg204a kslr

t(i.800,000
Part twohl the cilcuurstartces the accurac aud cotr-t

34
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The figure of
16,439,018
representing a

decrease in cash and

cah equvalents
arises
From cashflow fronr
operating activities
and net frclnr

operating and

investing activities
As here under
A) changes in net

assets =ksh
121,646,031.

[] (i) operating
activities

use of goods and

scrvices note 4

ksh.98,056,393
staff costs notc 5

ksh.156,800
arsset clePrcciaLiort

note 6 ksh
r 3,533, i 84

finance
costs-bank charges

note 7 ksh.9 I ,l 26

transfer to crf rrote I
kslr.64tt
tol-iil l0(r,71)tl,l i i

B (ii) invc:sting
activities
Note l0 civil
works 19,264,408
plant and rnachinery
11,760,000 road

oonstructton
15,522,738 capital
work in
progr ess(sichirai
market)
137 ,429,7 14 total
I83,976,860
Nst inut'ease in cash

and casl-t eclui valctrts

a-b 018r6 439

olt rrned
ective balauces coulcl

N/alcd
The tlnancialo d isclose reporting pcriorl

lity Board lras pre resentccltcl alcd and
ail

u

rc
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for the22 months to
june 2022 was

because th is was

Thc firsl tirne the

putrlio scctor
accounting
standards board
(psasb) had
produced a

Ternplate for
reportirtg for
municipalities in

kenya

financial statenrents for a period of
twenty-t,,vo (22) months ending 30 June, 2022' However'

no disclosure has beeu provided
in tlre llnancial staterrlents to tltis ellect as rcqrriled [ry

Scction (r(.l ol lrttcrnational ptrtrlic

Sectot' Accoutrling Stantlarcls (lPSAS) which provides

that if an cntity prcpares financial
stateurents f,or:a period shorter or longer than one financial

year, then a disclostrre should

be made giving reasons for the same.

ln the circuntstances, the financia[ staternellts were not

prepared in accorclance widr the

t'eqt, trent",,ts ol' lnf et.natiotral Public sector Accotrnting

standal'ds.

C)thcr Mattcr

The undcrlunding and urdcr'perfornlancr allccted Planned activilics and may I

impaclcd nedativcly on scNicc delivcry to lhc public.

documents in elect(onic ot manual {om shall be in vniting, signed and in the case ol

manual subntission, tlrey shallbe sealed in an erwelope

ln addition, no evrdence was provided to show llrat a [ender opening commiltee-was

onstituted as required by Seciion 78(1) of the Acl, which tequites an acrounting offtcrt

ola procuring entity to appointa tendeiopening commillee. ltvas,lherefore' not possibh

to conlirm w[etheitenders were submitled, duly opened and evaluated

ln the circumslances, the Management was in breach of the hw'

fo

al

il cctd cP l'o 1lc ril truI} tl v
ICrovcdi\clsrcllcanlountsacl alb ct andicm ol rson ofhcT sta comp
3Kr,0 ndofccria leacluaidoei
buo! thcclshK

Ksh a9olrctudiexpen
ncetmriunderlo pctc ul0 ting

respectively, resullinq to undcr-funding ol

Similarly. the stalcmenl reflects aclual

approvcd budocl ol Kshs.3g1,627,74

Kshs 279.789,589 or 71olo ol lhe budget.

1.1

Not

Resolve d

1.2 Cloinltlo !nd Lsndsc!po Maintcnnnco Scrviceg at Rostcrmin Solid Wailo

Dispoeal Sitc

Thc Municrpalrty Board awatdcd a co t.acl lo a localconrpany lot.cleanrng :11]t19:itp-1
moinl€naoce at Roslcrmam solid vraste disposal silo al a conttact sum ol

Kshs.13.689.177. Hovrevcr. lhe company did not 3ubmil o tcndcr documcnl as requrleo

by Sect;n 7i(1) ol lhe Pubtic Proculelhcnt and Asset DisposalAct' 2015which flovid-ca

Itiat aubmrsrion of tenaer docrrmonls in eteclronic or manual [ofin shall be.in wlrllng'

llglJrJ;ii," *i" 
"l 

malluol submission, they 3hall be sealed in an envclope

ln addilton, no evidence was Provided to show lhat a lender opening commi(lec $rag

;;.ltr,;#;;il;;;y Scciion ?e1t; ol tte Public Procurcmcnt ond Assct oispo3al

ea.-iOii *tttii,tqri,us'on Accounting Otlicer ol o procuring entilv to a??:ll]-1]e.1:l
ofcnhg comrnittee. ll was. rhelelore.- nol pos3ble to conrrm whelhct l6nde(s were

submilted, duly ope ed and ovalualed.

ln lhe cir@mstanceg. [lanagement was ln brcach o( lhe law'

1.2

3(r

Rcsolved

Con

.621Kshs.39lbasis0n
74712.25

15,838.



ill
Govsrtrr$ekt of ldakanaegu

a Monicipniity
/tt vt cni Finati<:ial Staletnctils bt the r e*ded.lu*e 3A' 2{}21

Not

Resolved2.0

tEcls Avrardcd Without Tcndcr 0psning Connnittecs

e period under reviev, 0re Municipalry Board also awaded nne (9) mnlracts

I of sorvices and viorks to{ amounts tolalling to Kshs.263,75i,728 Hor'/evcr,

lhe Fooremnt process reveald lhat lhe conlncls were avarded wilhoul

iected lo terder opening as rcquired by Sectim 78(l ) o[ lhe Puuic Prootenent

i Disposal Acl, 2015 whicn requires an accounling ollicet ol a ptocrring enlity

I a lender opening tlmmittee, ll r6s thereforc not possrtle to onfim whelhct

ae submilled, duly opened and evalualed

he cirdmlslances, Managentenlwas in breach ol lhe laY/

0thc

tht

supplt

Asse

appoin

ol

sub

Not

Resolved

nstruction ol Shhini Market and Acccss Roads

s, lhe Municipatlty Board did nol obtain value lor money from the

a

forloca constructionrd conlracta toBoa a\larded nycompaality

ofsum Kshs.at contracl ,050andmailet roadsaccessSichiraiof

lnafl end202c0rn r0gol monlhshrelve menol]g l,{ay4period

ireddocumenlid submi tendthe nol rcqu byHoulevet conrpa ny

5 tthich20nd elAsstheot ProcrLrenpnl kt, providesPublic1l 0isposal

be lnsh al writing

nvelope.

ollicer

!?asc0lntniIndcrteathatenceevid to openrngconlirnrp(ovided
oiAssctndblicPu sposalrocuacmentPed Seclion ol the7B(requ by

tenderatool a ppointentilyng5 procuriAccounlingrcquire
I5tendlclhetil) lo confhtnv/45 nottherefore oss

and luaeva tedopened

aidhadBoardMunic alittheMonths ednd rpJune30tvro 2)(2
inclussunlcontralhe ctB8or oIKshol s. 5 39lotal amount ,288

nceadvathill dale paymenls tolallingHorvever a5
c oas edullcte ont acto( bybecn recovercd reqrom8,332

ptrysic.at
toofing

that therevealcd allhough2022llicdca lnout Novc,rrbe(a inspection
bcenIOIhadaslelcslil tnc0mlhc clelapscd prolhad

cd toueenbe charketma hadthe ngolledtevea lhcthat o(icntationIt lso
tvas!,rhich malhe rket beinglandover otrt lhetowas di5pulc pn

QualitieBill oland revisebockinslruclions thethe dralting

aufor dino

4

1 I

In

Il

H

ol
ol

't0

o(loca conslructionclcontra company(oa\'94Eoard a(dedlity
andIoIsum Kshs. 09.,4conlraa ctShirete se aIol slaughtcrho

oncndlnua 22 andJa20 nglsol slx rymonll commenong(i

Sectionocument 77(d byrcqurredtendernoldid submitCom Pany
srcnsubmislhat5 which20and Assel providesAcl,0isposal

nand thenbeform shallnts orelcctronic UA wdling signcdman
tnol submission shall cnvelopc.scalcdbcthey

olllcer

itteec0mmtca ndermconlrt lhatnce ed to 0penrn9€vid provid
ofrhichActseclio lhe ccountingo{

t]0

as (equB(byrcquired
toosrible|loIwa5 therelorril pcomnlilleeto a nde,lcppoint openentity

alodIua rdtted otenders subni pencdduly

allltllalrevealed2022t'l loughovenlbe
tertJa heater ndalled solarinstflolhad

cornetslhcatndmelelslcoafterconcretc (1 0)everyalso support pole

of 0uantities.as nfor BiIIthfence provided

itation ot Shircro Slauglrtcrhousc

, the Municipatity Board did not obtain value for moncy form the

Not

Resolved4
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I

Not

Resolved

Corrstt uction of Perinreter Wall at Rosterman

Sitc -fhe Municipality Board awarded a contl'act to a local

constlrction .oti'tpu,ry for constrttction of a perin'reter wa[[

at Rostennatr disposal site at a contract suur of
Kshs.9,904,727. i{o*"u.r, the company did not submit a

teudet rlocurlctrt as r eqtrired by Section 77( l ) of tlte 
-

Public Plocurcrneut ancl Assct Disposal Act,20 I5 which

provitles tlrat subtlission of tender docttments in

electronic or nranual folm shall be in writing,

signecl an<l iu tlre case oftnanual subtnission, they shall be

..nl.cl i,, an etrvelope. ln addition, no cvidence was

provicled to confinri tltat a tender opening conrnrittee.was

constituted as reqtrired by Section?8(l) of the Act which

rcquires an Accoirnting Officer of a procuring entity to

appoint a tencler opening cotrrt'trittee. lt rvas thet'efote not

possiblc to continrl whcthcr tenders wcre submittcd' duly

openecl antl evaluated. ln the circunrstances, l/auagetnetrt

was iu blcach ol the law.

Disposal

Not

Resolved6.0

Coun4, Governnzcnt of Kakanrcga
K *kamey,u M u i t i cipali tv
..6nrit:ui. etoi ! antl 'i"ittu;ici$l Slligffieit iri; ttt:o.r etttlc.d Jttttc i{t' l02its .t'or t

Operational autononly of kakamega municipality..

Municipality Board while project implementation

was being carried out bY the CountY

Executive through the Department of Lands,

Housing, Urban Areas Development and.

Physical Planning. This is contrary to Section

21(1)(a) of the Urban Areas and Cities Act'

2011 which gives Municipality Boards

executive authority as delegated by County

Executives.
ln the circumstances, Management was in breach

of the law.

Areas and cities act

201 [ ammended

2019. And ltas

undertaken the

following stePs :-

1) appointed
municipalitY board

vide gazette notice
nutnber 10370 datect

21812023
2) gazetted ProPosed
devolved firnctions
tlrrough Sazette
notice no.6225 of
12l512023,both
copies of the gazette

notices aunex

3) appointed
lnanager as

accounting officer of
the
municipalitY,coPY of
the letter
Attachcd

N/a

AccountinT4 icipality

38
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County Gttvernment af Kakanwgu

Kakaw eg a Lt uniciP alitY

Annu*l RePort and Financiel Sieteneuts rlheY$ sxded J'r*e 30' 2023

Appcndix 3: Reporting of Climate Relevant Exllendittrres

Narne of the Organization

Telephone Nurnber

Email Address
Name of CEO/tvlDIFIead

Name and contact details of contact person (in case ofany clarifications)

Q4Q2Ql Q3
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Kakamega MnniciPelitY
and Financia[ Su(e,ne ts tke &r eizded June 30, 2023

Date

Entity

4l

Coutt4t Covernntent of l{.aka;'*gn

.Annu.al RePart r

Appenclix 4: Disaster Expcnditure Reporting Ternplate


